STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING

TUESDAY, JANUARY 21st, 2014 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
BILL SJOVANGEN BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MARSHALL MCBRIDE
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for January 21, 2014

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for November 19, 2013

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for December 3, 2013

6. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for January 7, 2014

CONSENT AGENDA

(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and

acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. ) '

7. For possible action approval of Treasurers Report for December 2013

8. For possible action approval to cancel the Commission Meeting of March 4, 2013 to allow
Commissioners and staff to participate in the National Association of Counties annual Legislative
Conference is Washington DC.




9. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:

a. CORIMA INT'L MACHINERY - Contractor/Via Medini SNC - Vigarano Pieve Italy
(Ardagh Supplier)
BENJAMIN FRANKLIN PLUMBING - Contractor/5401 Longley Lane, Reno (Contractor)
WILD HORSE GALLERY & GIFT - General/145 South C Street (Retail) VC
SIERRA CONSTRUCTION & DEV - Contractor/1215 Kleppe #9, Sparks (Contractor)
SIEMENS METALS TECHNOLOGIES - Contractor/501 Technology Dr., Canonsburg, PA
(Ardagh Supplier)
WESTERN INDUSTRIAL CONTRACTORS, INC. - Contractor/14805 E Moncrieff Pl.,
Aurora, CO (Ardagh Supplier)
g. TRUCKEE MOUNTAIN HOME CENTER - Contractor/11403 Brockway, Truckee, CA

(Fireplace Installation)

® o0 g

fual

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

10. DISCUSSION (No Action - No Public Comment): Comumittee/Staff Reports

11. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: For possible action approval of Payroll Check date
01/03/14 for $463,365.87 Accounts Payable date 01/10/14 for $679,985.32 and $4,384.87

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Authorize the District Attorney and County Manager to
purchase on behalf of the County property located at 62; 70; 74 and 82 South B Street in Virginia
City for an amount not to exceed $262,500.00 plus closing escrow and title costs. Once the
property is acquired, existing residential units will hopefully be relocated within the Comstock
Historic District and the target parcels will be developed for additional off-street parking.
Additional terms and conditions are detailed in the Agenda Action Report.

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: On whether to extend the Storey County Infrastructure Tax
and approval of the plan of projects to be funded by the tax.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: To approve the first reading of ordinance 13-254 adding
section 16.24.068 Lot consolidation to the Storey County Code to create a lot consolidation
process and amending section 16.24.070 revision to acreage, and providing for other properly
related matters.

16. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

a. AUSENCO P8I, LLC - Contractor/1320 willow Pass Road, Concord, CA (Engineer)

b. PROTECH COATINGS - Contractor/9911 South 500 west, Sandy, UT (Contractor)

¢. NEVADA TRAVEL CONNECTION - Home Business/399 Wild Horse Canyon, Sparks
(Travel Agent)
FRONTIER CRANE - Contractor/3445 Golden Valley, Reno (Crane Rental Service)
DESERT AIR, LLC ~ Contractor/1995 Boise Drive, Sparks (HVAC Contractor)
R.F. MACDONALD CO - Contractor/8565 White Fir St., Reno (Boiler Sales & Service)
CROWN BEVERAGES, INC. - General/600 Spice Island Dr., Sparks (Beverage Distributor)

SN

2




"0 0

w

u.

V.

TAHOE RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, LLC ~ Developer/420 USA Pkwy, TRI
SOUDRONIC, LIMITED - Contractor/465 North State Rd, Manor, NY (Can Manufacturer
Machinery)
ARROW CONSTRUCTION - Contractor/ 100 Ave of the Couleurs, Rainbow Bend
PORT OF SUBS (WALMART) ~ General/2155 USA Parkway, TRI
MUSTANG RAMCH EMPORIUM, LLC - General/5 N C Street (Restaurant & Retail) VC

. MUSTANG RANCH EMPORIUM, LLC - General/ 62 N C Street (Retail) VC
EUCLID CHEMICAL COMPANY - Contractor/3735 Green Rd., Beachwood, OH (Concrete
Supplier)
COMSTOCK VISIONS, INC. - Nonprofit/ 150 North Summit (Event Promotion) VC
HEATTEK, INC., - Contractor/PO Box 347, Ixonia, WI (Can Equipment Installation)
TRINITY ALARMS, INC. - Contractor/660 Buckskin Drive, Fernley (Alarm Installer)
MOUNTAIN FOAM & COATING - Contractor/305 Highway 395, Washoe Valley
(Contractor)
MINDEN HEATING & AIR - Contractor/ 2701 Gordon Avenue, Minden (HVAC Contractor)
STERLING PRODUCTS, INC. - Contractor/1100 East Woodfield, Schaumburg, IL
(Equipment Installation)
AEC, INC - Contractor/ 1100 East Woodfield, Schaumburg, IL (Equipment Installation)
RAPID CONSTRUCTION - Contractor/3072 Research Way, Carson City (Contractor)

w. AFFORDABLE FILTRATION - Contractor/999 Ridgeview Drive, Reno (Water Filtration)

17. CORRESPONDENCE:

18. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

19. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PQ Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,

3




Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before January 15, 2014; Virginia
City Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands
Fire Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 21, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for November 19, 2013

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted,

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.

5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
}[5 Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
ﬂgﬂdv/éounty Manager Other agency review:
- g

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

mmad b}

Agenda Item No. 4




STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 19TH 2013 8:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
BILL SJOVANGEN BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MARSHALL MCBRIDE
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman Sjovangen, Vice-Chairman McBride, Commissioner Lance Gilman, District
Attorney Bill Maddox, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, County Manager Pat Whitten,
Community Services Director Deny Dotson, Emergency Management/Grants Cherie Nevin,
Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Senior Planner/ Administrative Officer
Austin Osborne and Deputy District Attorney Bob Morris, Toby Whitten, Deputy Assessor

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 8:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 13-385 Honoring Gerrie Honea

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher presented Gerrie Honea with a plaque honoring her service.

Motion: Approval of Resolution 13-385 Honoring Gerrie Honea Action: Approve Moved by Vice-
Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for November 19, 2013
Dale Beach, Storey County Resident is upset that he did not hear back on his agenda request.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident asked the commissioners to amend agenda item #12
should read possible of approval of the independent auditor’s report.




Toby Whitten, Deputy Assessor asked that item #6 resolution number be corrected from 13-362 to 13-
386

Motion: Approve the agenda for October 15, 2013, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman
McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
4, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for August 6, 2013
e Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident - Page 1 under his public comments where he
addressed item #10; “remaining” balance.
e On page number 3 top of page VCCTC is new and it should be agenda item number 5. The
next item is not numbered and it has VCTC. The name needs to be straightened out.

Pat Whitten suggested that the first item does need correction but the second item should remain.

Motion: Approval of the Minutes for August 6, 2013 with the mentioned correction, Action:
Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA

5. For possible approval the Treasurer Report for October 2013

6. For possible approval of Resolution 13-386, A resolution to direct the County Assessor to prepare
a list of all the taxpayers on the secured roll in the county pursuant to NRS 361.300 section 3

7. Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 10/11/13 for $473,169.67, 10/24/13
for $370,568.67 and 11/08/13 for $460,198.84 and Accounts Payable date 10/18/13 for
$1,188,068.16 and $4,833.37 and 11/01/13 for $308,281.46 and $3,964.58

8. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:

a. MATRIX LEADERSHIP, LLC - General/322 Bayhill Circle, Dayton (Consultant)

b. NEOPOST USA, INC - General/478 Wheelers Farms Rd, Milford, CT (postage machine
rental)
BIGGE CRANE & RIGGING - Contractor/10700 Bigge St, San Leandro, CA (crane cont.)
HIGHLANDS HOME REPAIR - Contractor/14500 Geronimo Trail, Reno {contractor)
SIERRA CONVEYOR COMPANY - Contractor/1225 Nichols Dr, Roseville, CA (conveyor
cont.)
CANLINE USA - Contractor/6525 Commonwealth, Roanoke, VA (contractor)
KAREN A COSTA - General/60 Horseshoe Circle, Reno (auctioneer)
NPB AUTOMATION AB - Contractor/ 53302 Jonkoping, Sweden (contractor - Ardagh)
INTERNATIONAL LIVING TECH - Contractor/850 Maestro, Reno (contractor)
CISCO AIR SYSTEMS, INC - General/214-27t%, Sacramento (air compressor sales)

2

o QN




k. BUILDERS ROOFING, INC. - Contractor/PO Box 8046, Reno (contractor)

1. GRADEX CONSTRUCTION - Contractor/800 Bennie Ln, Reno (contractor)

m. LEVIATHAN MEDIA GROUP - Home Business/1911 Main Street, Gold Hill (publisher)

n. OHIO BLOW PIPE CO., INC. - Contractor/446 East 1%, Cleveland (install scrap removal
system)

Motion: Approval of consent agenda with noted corrections, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-
Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

(Item #11 moved up)DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Robert Sader, Legal Counsel for the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center requesting Commission consideration of implementation of SB 272
of the 2013 Legislative Session. For further clarification, this request pertains only to Section 1.5
of SB 272 which is for property now in Washoe County north of the Centerline of the Truckee
River and South of Interstate 80. This request does not pertain to Section 1 of SB 272 which
involves an area of land currently situated in Storey County and more commonly known as
“Sunny Hills”.

Commissioner Gilman removed himself from voting and joined the audience. Bob Sader, Legal
Counsel for the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC, requests that the commission consider action to
approve the boundary adjustment of land that requires approval of both Washoe and Storey
Counties before it is enacted. TRI believes it is in their best interest to make the change, but the
request is that Storey County District Attorney and staff enter into discussions with Washoe County
to determine if it is in the best interest to both counties. County Manager Pat Whitten clarified that
section 1.5 is the area of concern and no other parcels. District Attorney, Bill Maddox emphasized
that the land that is subject to a potential boundary change in the Highlands is in no way linked to
the boundary change by the river. There is much more to consider concerning the boundary change
in the highlands and that process has hardly even begun. Pat Whitten clarified as well that there is no
action requested on Section 1.0, the “Sunny Hills” piece. Bob Sader clarified that TRI has no interest
in that Section 1.0 either.

Nicole Barde, Virginia City Highlands Resident would like to see any documented or interlocal
agreement before it is signed. District Attorney, Bill Maddox assured her that any interlocal
agreement would be brought before the commission publically before it was signed.

Motion: To request the District Attorney and staff to contact and discuss with their counterparts
in Washoe County the advisability and feasibility of implementing the boundary line change of
Section 1.5 of Senate Bill 272 of the 2013 Session of the Nevada State Legislature with the intent
that Storey County representatives report back to the Commission with a recommendation on
approval or disapproval and any terms, conditions or agreements advisable or necessary, Action:
Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2) Commissioner Gilman abstained

9. DISCUSSION (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
3




Community Chest Director, Shaun Griffin

e Reported that $10k was raised at their fundraiser for the Library a week ago Friday bringing
them to about $45k with the Community Foundation of Western Nevada matching grant.
They had over $15k before the event which was the required match. He wants to thank the
community and come back before the commissioners before the December 315t deadline to talk
about getting more to hire a librarian and part time staff member to enable them to open the
adult section. If they need to rent space to do that they will do so. In the interim, if they
continue to keep the Children’s Nook upstairs at the community center they will need to do
more work on the building to accommodate it and meet code requirements, so there is a sense
of urgency and they're trying to avoid excessive cost. He also thanked Bill Maddox for the
shelves he supplied for the law library. It's completed and it’s beautiful. The sooner we can
get the first phase finished, the sooner we can have the second phase completed and avoid
additional costs.

Community Services Director, Deny Dotson

e Presented a plaque to the commissioners for the Nevada Day Parade award for the Storey
County float.

e Christmas on the Comstock - We would like to jazz up the parade. This should be the best
parade in a long time. It will be tied in with breakfast with Father Christmas, kids’ movies
playing at Piper’s, Christmas in the Sierra concert, the Candy-Cane Trains and all will all be
coordinated on a master schedule so folks can come up and spend the whole day with us. We
are calling out for entries from all businesses and department heads to bring vehicles and
floats to show our Christmas spirit. We will have the parade coordinated with lighting up the
town as it goes along and end up at the head frame where there will be a special treat for
everybody.

» We have a sign to up at Mark Twain community center.

Lance Gilman donated a tow truck a driver and a 40’ float trailer to the parade efforts.

Emergency Management Director, Joe Curtis
¢ Just a reminder that we are continuing to make plans and pursue the functional evacuation
exercise project in May of next year for the Highlands. We have Red Cross, Washoe County,
Nevada Highway Patrol, and all of our local services involved.

Fire Chief, Gary Hames

¢ We've begun working with the USDA looking at paperwork for financing the replacement of
our structure engines which we discussed last fiscal year. We are having significant problems
primarily with the engine out in the Highlands, and I wanted to publically thank Central Lyon
County who has been nice enough to loan us their reserve engine. Ours seems to break down
with overheating problems every other week or so.

* We are also having significant breakdowns with our ambulances. I'm in communication with
the county manager and the comptroller. We are currently wrapping up an Assistance to
Firefighter grant through FEMA. 25% of their millions of dollars in grants is earmarked for
equipment replacement. We are asking to re-chassie three of our ambulances. We purchased
them out of plan-review fees in 2006 and they are all the exact same model year with the exact

4




same engines and therefor issues such as turbos, E.G.Rs, ignition controls, etc. We are
averaging at least one engine broken down in the shop every week. About two and a half
weeks ago we did have an ambulance actually break down and coast into a hospital with a
very sick patient in the back, so this is becoming critically important to us. There are some
national class-action lawsuits with that 6.0 engine. Unfortunately, none of them include
ambulances, only private citizens. When we contacted them years ago concerning the
lawsuits, they did extend our warrantee by a year but that has since expired.

At the first meeting in January we will be bringing forward an updated agreement for an
MOU with the Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association. We have a fuels grant
to work in their right-of-ways and easements and new board has been extremely cooperative
and easy to work with.

Senior Planner/Administrative Officer Austin Osborne

Reminder that this Thursday the 21¢t the Planning Commission will hold another workshop
for the master plan at the Virginia City Fire Station 1 training center on C Street. The public is
encouraged to come. We will discuss what the people want for the county as far as
population, transportation, economic development, business on C Street, redevelopment of
Virginia City and Gold Hill, and any other county-wide items of interest.

This Friday at 6pm at the Highlands Fire Station there will be a workshop regarding the
“Sunny Hills” project. This meeting is not sponsored by the county, but by a private entity.
There is a possibility for a quorum of the county commission to be present just for listening
and learning.

The Planning Commission is having an informal Christmas Holiday party on December 19 at
6pm in the first floor hallway of the Courthouse. The public is invited to come and meet with
our planning commissioners and discuss concerns and/ or just get to know who they are.

Planner Dessie Redmond

Regarding sign code enforcement, Austin and I have completed two complete sweeps through
C Street. Some of the situations are not cut and dry, but we are doing our best.

Bob and I have been working on the lot consolidation ordinance and we hope to bring that to
you in January.

The planning team has been trying to abate some of the nuisances and bring code violations
into compliance.

Public Works Director Mike Nevin

The application that we submitted for streetlights in the Lockwood area has been approved
and executed by the county and NV Energy. They estimate cost of about $4500 for four lights.
After receiving the signed agreement last week, I asked what the timeframe may be for the
installation and they said it could happen as early as this week.

The air release valve (ARV) project on the water line and the siphon from Lakeview to
Virginia City is about 90% complete. The weather has been cooperating. There were some
delays on the siphon side in obtaining the equipment and materials. I was out there
vesterday when the contractor installed the final ARV and it's progressing nicely. I did want
to mention that the siphon was shut down for six days. We don’t recall a shutdown lasting
that long in recent history even when they had the leak on the freeway. With everyone’s
cooperation in conservation we made it through even though we did drop the level of water

5




in the 5-mile tank to about a foot. It is interesting to note something regarding the assemblies
that were installed from the 5-mile reservoir to Virginia City. We were shut down for a
couple of days and when we fired that line back up we had water flowing back into the
bullion tank in town within an hour. In the past, without them, when we’ve had problems
and shutdowns, we've waited sometimes a day or more to see water return to town. So they
do make a huge difference and are worth the expense. Hopefully by the next meeting the
contract will be 100% complete.

Lance Gilman made mention of some flood drainage pipes in TRI that are filled with debris and need
some attention. Also there is visible erosion on USA Parkway due to truck traffic and general use
and we may want to start some discussion on resurfacing some areas. Mike Nevin said that he did
meet with some people over a month ago regarding the culvert. Vince Griffith was going to make
contact with a couple of contractors to examine solutions.

District Attorney, Bill Maddox excused himself for a few minutes to attend to a case.

Sheriff Gerald Antinoro
e Last Friday we graduated two reserves from the State Police Academy.
e Shaun Griffin, Tony Dosen, Melanie Keener and I recently attended some exceptional training
on mental health issues and crisis intervention that we hope to get more of our staff trained in.
We have a great relationship with Community Chest and this moves us to the next level of
providing for the needs of our community.

County Manager Pat Whitten

» Regarding the “Sunny Hills” workshop Austin mentioned; we will be posting a quorum in
the event two or more of you would like to attend and staff will be attending. We should talk
to our folks after the meeting but we are not sanctioning or participating in this in any way.

e [ want to clarify something Nicole Bard said. She mentioned approval of an interlocal
agreement with the rail commission. While the rail commission did approve it on May 20t,
and we in June, we did follow normal protocol. Often when there are multiple local
governments involved each entity will meet and approve it, but that agreement is not binding
or legal until all parties have approved it.

¢ Reminder to everyone that December 6% is the annual County Christmas party at Piper’s
Opera House and it's an open house so no invitation is required.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 13-385 Honoring Gerrie Honea
(Moved item to beginning of meeting between items 2 and 3

11. (Moved item to discussion between item #8 and item #9)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Storey County Audited Financial
Statements for the year beginning July 1, 2012 and ending June 30, 2013

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher - I received a phone call yesterday from a Department of Taxation
analyst Susan Lewis concerning comments that were made before the local government finance

6




committee on November 151 by three of our residents where they accused me of hoarding the
statements since September 7t or 6t of this year making me out of compliance with Nevada Revised
Statutes. I'm here to tell you that I am not and will so demonstrate.

On page one of the financial statement under “Opinions” David Pringle, CPA states, “In our
opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Storey County, Nevada, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial
position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.”

On page two you will notice that David Pringle, CPA, LTD signed this document on September 6,
2013. There seems to be some confusion between this date and the confirmation from the
commissioners here today. The September date represents the date that Mr. Pringle completed the
tield work pertaining to the financial statements. It also represents the last date that employees of
Mr. Pringle were on site performing audits. The significance is that if anything occurred after this
date to materially affect the current financial statement presentation, and Pringle, CPA had
knowledge of it they would have to investigate the material of difference and therefor change the
date to the second departure.

So, they've done their fieldwork as of September 6. They then go back and do all they need to
create the presentation of the financial statements. We were given the financial statements about
two weeks ago and in accordance with all the NRSs we are in compliance. Hugh Gallagher referred
to NRS354-624 and NRS 354-624.5.

Mr. Gallagher went on to go over some details of the audit report and mentioned that Pringle CPA is
present to address any concerns or specific questions.

Pat Whitten requested Hugh Gallagher’s comment on #7 on page 85 concerning adjustments on the
fire and jail funds. Mr. Gallagher explained that these two funds are in a negative cash balance
position. He recommends that during the next meeting they approve a loan for that amount having
it payable at the end of the fiscal year and to be more diligent to know what is going on with them
and keep a close eye on them. Pat Whitten complimented the departments on reducing these
negative balances. There is a lot of work that must be done that does not have offsetting revenue
and they are looking at that.

Marshall McBride asked if these accounts are anticipated to be balanced by the end of the fiscal year.
Pat Whitten explained that they would still be in deficit, but that the goal would be to shrink the
deficit or temporarily loan money to those two funds. Lance Gilman said he will present a motion
that they review line items by department where they are at least quarterly in regard to the budget.
Hugh Gallagher said that that would not happen due to unanticipated expenses that come up.
Lance Gilman would still like to see the commission more involved earlier.

The commission complimented and thanked David Pringle, CPA, LTD.




¢, Senior Accountant and Auditor for David Pringle, CPA, LTD wanted to point out that in
the budget there is a line item called “contingencies” which had in excess of $200k in it last year.
Whenever anything happens that is out of the ordinary, you may take money from this line item in
order to keep your budget in line. It's a substantial amount of money, but you can increase it or
decrease it on an annual basis when you file your budget.

Nicole Barde, Virginia City Highlands Resident appreciates Commissioner Gilman’s suggestion of
reviewing it on a quarterly basis.

* On page 7 it indicates that on August 3, 2011 Storey County issued $2,000,000 worth of
General Obligation Bonds for rail. It says we received the funds on December 28, 2011. She
thought this was 2010 and would like to verify that.

* She also questions the full amount received. The two bonds together add up to less than
$2,000,000 and questions what happened to the balance.

* In the bond interest schedule that there is “debt service” and “retired” and she wants to know
what “retired” means. Why are we retiring the funds we need to complete the project?

» Where does the interest come from? It appears to come from the rail fund, but if that fund is a
restricted fund to be used for construction only and not salaries or anything else, why are we
reducing the principal and wonders if that is proper.

Hugh Gallagher - regarding the V&T bond, the money will still be in the account once this is all over.
We still have to pay for the bond, which is the principal and interest. So if you're looking at the
income statement it will reflect that. If you're looking at the balance sheet statement it will reflect
what we have. The retirement of the debt is really the principal and the interest we have to pay
within the income statement. We still have the bond available on the balance sheet for when
everything is to be paid. When the bids come in we’ll be able to pay them without obligation.

e Ms. Barde also asked what other railroad funds are available in that account, and suggested an

audit of that fund.

Hugh Gallagher explained that this was a specific fund set up for the bond issue and subsequently is
audited. Pat Whitten clarified that historic references from 2010 or 2011 that referenced either the
Capitol Projects Account which is a component of the General Fund, or the Infrastructure Account
which is a separate statutory fund were more globally positioned to ask if we should do the tunnel
which we were projecting at that time. The bond itself was not enough to cover projected expenses,
so there were references to these other accounts. However, I might add that here we are going into
2014 and we've not done the tunnel. 1 think a lot of that may be discussed in more detail pertinent to
item 14 on today’s agenda. The Infrastructure account requires certain statutory planning. We are
working with Mr. Morris and Mr. Gallagher and the departments in terms of what they may consider
applicable needs in terms of utilizing that fund. Lance Gilman requested an historical recap on the
tunnel issue.

Janet Houts, Storey County Resident
Concerning quarterly reports for budget and expenses, R05-12 was approved by the legislature in
December 2012. I have asked the Department of Taxation why it was not implemented and have not
heard back from them.
¢ Janet submitted her questions to the clerk and Chairman Sjovangen suggest that Janet meet
with them outside the meeting she is entitled to do that, but her questions are too detailed for
this meeting,.




Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident
e The auditor was not told that Story County’s Debt Management committee failed to meet as
required by statute in February.
e Referring to p.29 paragraph 4, there is nothing on record to support it and there is still conflict
with the VCCTA name.
Kris Thompson, member of the public, feels the audit is superbly done.

Dale Beach, Storey County Resident feels it’s the sorriest budget he’s ever seen.

Motion: To approve the audit as presented adding the following conditions:

1. That the staff fully complies with recommendations 2, 3, 4, and 5 from the auditor’s report on
prior year’s recommendations as listed on page 79 of the report.

2. That the staff fully complies with the recommendations made in the report for the current year as
listed on page 80 of the report.

3. That the county manager and/or comptroller provide a report to the commission at our next
regularly scheduled meeting on specifically how staff will implement these recommendations.

4. That at the conclusion of each quarter of the fiscal year, the comptroller will issue a summary
report to the commissioners to be presented at the second commission meeting following the end
of the fiscal quarter, providing a summary by department and by fund, all specific accounts where
actual expenditures have exceeded approved appropriations and an explanation from the
department or fund manager as to the corrective actions being taken,

Action: Approve Moved by Lance Gilman, Seconded by Vice-Chairman McBride

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Selection and prioritization of two applications for the
2014 Community Development Block Grant Program. Possible projects include: Canyon General
Improvement District Project, Storey County Senior Center Project and the sponsorship of the
Retired Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP) Respite Care project.

Grants and Emergency Management Coordinator, Cherie Nevin presented recommendations for the
2014 Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG).

Motion: Approval of the CDBGP as presented by Ms. Nevin, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-
Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Nicole Barde request as to status of the one-quarter cent
sales tax to fund the Nevada Commission for the Reconstruction of the V&T Railroad.

Nicole Barde, Virginia City Highlands Resident requested explanation of the quarter cent sales tax
status, and also to asked find out why the conditions of the interlocal and the financial impact were
not included on the ballot. Chairman Sjovangen agreed with her concerns and recommends that they
put it back on the agenda when they have more information. Pat Whitten clarified that the interlocal
agreement and the status of the quarter cent was crafted in order to address rail issues. It is his intent

5




to put the rail commission on notice that they require a draw of a certain amount once the projects are
identified. Mr. Sjovangen would like to continue to a future date. Lance Gilman would like staff to
come up with an executive summary. Nicole Barde stated that no effort was made to make the
interlocal agreement public. She is concerned about seeing the money in Storey County due to the
interlocal, and Marshall McBride assured her that they would. She still has concern that the
agreement was not published and the promise that it would remain in Storey County was not
supported. Pat Whitten asked her how she would like to see it “published” and she responded that
she would like to see it as an attachment to the agenda. Hugh Gallagher went to the auditor for the
VCRC and asked for their statement of June 30, 2013 and they have filed for an extension. I gave her
the excerpt for the option tax plus the $250k stipend they were going to give us and the interlocal
agreement, and she did not have that information. So when they start sending out their confirmations
for what is owed for the various facilities such as Storey County then the detail will be there
including their opinion on what is owed on this.

Dale Beach, Storey County Resident liked Mr. Gilman’s input but wants to know if they will find out
if what they voted on will actually happen. The commission assured him it would.

Motion: To take no action on item #14. Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride
Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
15. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
a. FLEETWOODGOLDCOWYARD, INC. - Contractor/8020 Forsyth Blvd, St. Louis, MO
(machine manufacturer and installer for Ardagh)
b. PACIFIC MAT'L. HANDLING SOLUTIONS - Contractor/30361 Whipple Road, Union City,
CA (service, sales and rental of lift trucks)
c. ALFONS FAAR - Contractor/150 Advanced Drive, Springboro, OH (machine manufacturer
and installer for Ardagh)
d. MARIO FLORES GONZALEZ - Home Business/3200 Cartwright, VC Highlands (Attorney)
e. SOLAR SYSTEMS MECH, LLC - Contractor/670 Professional Ave, Henderson (HVAC
Cont.)
f. SAFETY-KLEEN SYSTEMS, INC -~ Contractor/2600 N Central Expwy, Richardson, TX
(environmental services)
g. POSDCORB, LC - General/108 Garden Gate Way, Carson City (consultant)
h. WIDE OPEN - General/ 1777 Per Drive, TRI (off-road tours and racing)

County Manager Pat Whitten spoke for Dean Haymore. Community Development recommends
continuation of item h and approval of items a-g.

Motion: Continue h. Wide Open Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded
by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

10




Motion: Approval of items a-g, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded
by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
16. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Juanita Cox, River District Resident

She is concerned with shooting in the River District area and would like signage to post it as
congested. She also feels that getting land in the area back to Storey County that could clarify
McCarran Ranch as Storey County would help when reporting shooters. Commissioner Gilman
suggested Storey and Washoe Counties as well as Nature Conservancy and Public lands to look to for
permitting issues. Pat Whitten added Nevada Department of Wildlife to that list.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident
» Would like the Storey County Clerk and District Attorney, Bill Maddox to sponsor an agenda
item for the next meeting for a resolution to put five commissioners on the next ballot.
e Chairman Sjovangen has been charged by the VCTC to address the public restrooms at the
north end of town that has been closed for weeks now. He would like to see it opened.
» The motion on the audit is appreciated. The conditions were a real step in the right direction
and a great way to address the concerns of the general public.

Dale Beach, Storey County Resident feels he is being singled out because his correspondence is not on
the agenda. He's also upset that the Storey County employees get a better rate on propane than the
public does.

Nicole Barde, Virginia City Highlands Resident
» The Highlands also gets a rate for the propane and suggested that the commission present a
tool to the other communities to help them bargain with the propane providers.

Kris Thompson wanted to follow up on Mr. Beach’s comments. He sees them as insulting and
smearing without any offer of suggestions to help.

Janet Houts, Storey County Resident
¢ A cost benefit analysis should be done on tourism spending.
¢ Community Services should come to Mark Twain to see how bad it is as she has not seen any
improvements,
» She's upset that rejected to use the community center facilities.
e The audit report has many mistakes.

17. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
Marshall McBride would like to see in writing the rejection Ms. Houts’ claims to have received
for use of the community center. Lance Gilman said that she was invited to join the board or
become involved in community and volunteer services and the response that he got back in
writing was that as long as we were to pay her the generous salaries and benefits that we give
others, she would be willing to work in the Mark Twain area, but only on payroll. There are a

11




lot of generous people in Mark Twain who are donating their time as volunteers and are on a
positive basis looking to reward and work within their community.

18. CORRESPONDENCE (No Action - No Public Comment)

Pat Whitten stated that these are presented for informational purposes. If they are approved
they appear within the agenda and if not it has been requested that they appear so the
commission and the public are made aware of them. These individuals have been denied
under policy either because the items have been addressed previously or do not merit
placement on the agenda under the policy or are not appropriate for placement. Those
people that are denied still have the recourse to request a single commissioner to place the
item on the agenda or discuss it during public comment.

a. Agenda request from Dale Beach

b. Agenda request from Janet Houts

19. ADJOURNMENT
Adjourned by the call of the Chair at 10:30 am

Respectfully submitted,

By MM&IPZ&AA*
Vanessa Stephens, Clerk-Treasurer

12




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 21, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for December 3, 2013

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.

5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
3. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
@ Nr{/ﬁlnty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

e e

Agenda Item No. 6




STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3RD, 2013 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
BILL SJOVANGEN BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MARSHALL MCBRIDE
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman Bill Sjovangen, Vice-Chairman Marshall McBride, County Manager Pat
Whitten, District Attorney Bill Maddox, Clerk and Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Community Services
Director Deny Dotson, Fire Chief Gary Hames, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher
and Deputy District Attorney Robert Morris.

Absent: Commissioner Lance Gilman

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
The meeting was called to order at 10:02 A.M. by the Chairman

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chairman led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for December 3, 2013
Chairman Sjovangen asked that item #12 be continued and item #15 follow item #7.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident, stated that the Board previously continued the Jail
Fund ordinance to this meeting, the item is noticeably missing from the agenda.

Motion: Approve Agenda for December 3, 2013, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman
McBride by Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
1




the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

4.

5.

For possible approval the Treasurer Report for November 2013

Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 11/13/13 for $5,231.46 and 11/17/13
for $381,408.71 and Accounts Payable date 11/15/13 for $381,408.71 and $2,528.71

For possible action cancelation of the December 17, 2013 County Commission Meeting

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride by
Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

7. DISCUSSION (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Pam Abercrombie, Project Management Development Director for Community Chest:
Reported on success they have had with the $15k Community Foundation for Western Nevada
matching grant for the library. As of today we have raised $24k, so our ambition now is to
double the amount of the match. The support from donors and the community has been
phenomenal. Our goal is now to raise $30k, which would give us a budget of $45k plus $6k in
other monies. We then have another grant that goes before the Leonette Foundation Friday for
another $20k. In all total that will give us $71k, which will enable us to get a full time librarian
and a part time assistant which will enable us to stabilize the library. If we can get state
recognition as a “special [ibrary”, then we can get LSDA monies and won’t have to come back to
the county for funding in the future. The commissioners are all in full support of the raising of
the additional funds needed. County Manager Pat Whitten reminded them that the county
Christmas party on Friday will be donating all the tip jars to the effort.

Marilee and John Miller:

John extended thanks to everyone for the lights that have been installed in Lockwood, in the
Senior Center Parking Lot, and Peri Ranch Road. They were needed.

Marilee said that the work that has been done and the concern from the commission on the park
and the lights has brought the River District community together and focused it on fun things
more than ever before. There is a group of people, We Care, under the auspice of the Sherriff's
department that take care of all the fun stuff in this County. On December 7%, we will be taking
pictures with Santa at the senior center, and on the 21t at the community building in the River
District. On the 234, the Parade of Lights will be held all through the streets of the community.
She continued to thank all the departments that have helped, including the Fire Department for
coming and helping clean up.




Sheriff Gerald Antinoro:

Addressed Mr. Phillips and assured him that they have been discussing the Jail fund and
will hopefully have some resolution on it sometime in January.

Notice that the corner fund will be blown due to unfortunate circumstances. We have had
a great number of deaths in the county including three over the holiday weekend, two of
which required post-mortem examinations. A standard topical exam may run from $500-
$600. A standard autopsy may run about $1800. A full blown homicide autopsy, such as
had to be done on the remains found this summer, will exceed $5500, which on its own is
% of the budget on that account.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher:

Yesterday he met with the Fiscal Analyst for Storey County, Susan Lewis, at the
Department of Taxation to review a meeting they had in September in which several
issues were brought up. They are pleased with the resolution of the VCTC ordinance as
well as the resolutions eliminating the town of Gold Hill and town of Virginia City. They
are also satisfied with the infrastructure tax issue which we will discuss today. They are
fine with the financing application for the Sheriff/D.A. billing which we had thought we
would pay all in one lump sum, but decided not to as we got a fairly good rate. There is
discussion regarding the jail fund currently on the table which Ms. Lewis understands. He
clarified with her that it is mostly for license fees, not assessments for construction. They
were to set up a meeting with their Executive Director, Chris Neilson, to discuss sales
taxes with regard to the Tahoe Regional Industrial Park and she apologized that it had not
been done yet. They were going to see if there is anything they can do from their end as
far as distributions of funds for the Virginia Truckee Railroad, but Mr. Gallagher doesn’t
think there is anything they can do. They have applied for an extension.

Mr. Gallagher encouraged the public to email him with any questions or comments
regarding the financial statements for 2013 and he will be happy to get them any
information they are requesting.

Fire Chief, Gary Hames:

We've lost three more people to the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District effective the
10, We are fortunate that we have a current consortium testing list that we will be
interviewing from starting on Monday. There are six fully qualified applicants on that list.
After this go-around that list will probably be fully expired and there will be no one left on
it that meets our qualifications, which are a little more stringent. We will be advertising
for reserve firefighters and establishing another hiring list. This will be number five since
July 1st with four to Truckee Meadows and one to the Airport Authority. We do conduct
exit interviews, but there is not really any one thing that we can point to as far as a reason
for loosing people. Some of it is equipment. We've had a lot of ambulance breakdowns.
All three of these people experienced ambulance breakdowns with patients in the back
and that was the number one thing he heard from them, and they don’t do transports at
the agencies they are going to and they find that attractive. The other thing is upward
mobility. We are a small department and these other agencies offer positions which we
expect our firefighters to fill. These losses are expensive. We lost 14 people last fiscal year
and ran in a deficit. Two repairs alone last year, one of which was $20k and another at
$12k, which took up our entire line-item for maintenance.

3




BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

District Attorney, Bill Maddox has been very busy with criminal issues and also with public
administrator duties of dealing with deaths in the last few months. Hopefully, the deputy D.A.
which has been authorized will help alleviate some of the criminal side and he will be able to get
to more of the civil things that are backed up right now.

County Manager Pat Whitten reminded everyone that there will not be a second meeting in
December so the next meeting will be at 10am on January 7%, For good news, Google “Zulily”
which is a TRI based company. They had their IPO at $22 and they closed at $36 or more per
share which is phenomenal. County Christmas party is this Friday at Piper's Opera House with
cocktails at 5pm and dinner at 6pm and everyone is welcome.

Pat Whitten read a statement from Lance Gilman:
County Commission Meeting

December 3, 2013

Statement re Phillips FDS allegation against Gilman

In September of this year, Mark Joseph Phillips filed a formal written complaint with the Secretary of State
claiming Storey County Commissioner Lance Gilman failed to disclose two creditors on his FDS filings
during his campaign and on a filing after his election as a Storey County Commissioner. Mr. Phillips
published this allegation in a local paper, and made public statements about it as well.

Scott Giles, Deputy Secretary of State for Elections for the State of Nevada, fully investigated the
complaint and has totally exonerated Commissioner Gilman. In a letter to Commissioner Gilman, dated
November 25, 2013, Mr. Giles stated as follows:

“Upon review of your written response, this office is convinced that your financial disclosures are
accurate and met the requirements of NRS 281.571. As such, the Secretary of State’s office finds that
the allegations in the above-referenced Election Integrity Violation report do not amount to a violation
of NRS Chapter 281 or any other statute or administrative code within Title 24.” (Underlined in
original.)

My, Giles has closed the investigation on Mr. Phillips’ complaint.

8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of resolution 13-387, 2013 Community Service
Award for Business of the Year

Community Services Director, Deny Dotson (Christmas on the Comstock is this weekend.)

This award will be selected by the Storey County Director of Community Services, Community
Development, and the Virginia City Tourism Commission. It will be awarded to a business or
organization that has shown significant achievements or have made significant contributions to the
residents of Storey County.




Standard criteria for the Awards:
The selection committee will consider performance and achievement in any of, but not limited to, the
following areas:

* Leadership and Entrepreneurship

* Product or Marketing Innovations

e Significant Business Achievement

Sales and/ or Employment Growth and Technological Advancement
Excellent in Community Relations/Contribution

Environmental Consciousness

Customer Service and Reliability

High Standard of Employee Relations

Contributes to the Economic Health of Storey County

* Success in filling a marketplace need

Carl Kuttel, Virginia City Tours, has been a face of Virginia City and a teller of its history for over 27
years. Mr. Dotson presented the 2013 Business of the Year award to Mr. Kuttel. Pat Whitten
commended his staff as well.

Mr. Dotson read resolution No: 13-387 into record.

Motion: Approve resolution 13-387, 2013 Community Service Award for Business of the Year,
Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride by Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

9. DISCUSSION ONLY (NO ACTION): Paul Kvam provided an update on efforts to bring
natural gas service to Virginia City and Gold Hill. Southwest gas is interested in coming up if it
is economically viable. If Comstock Mining can be brought in, they will definitely be swayed.
The school district also uses a lot of propane. They still need some numbers on residential use.
They will need a trench from highway 50 and could share with a water line. The routing is
tough, but they can put numbers together once they have the residential numbers. They need to
come up with the most direct route with the easiest digging, avoiding blasting. There will be
competition with the propane providers as well as NV Energy.

Chairman Sjovangen asked what Mr, Kvam thinks may happen with the Propane pushback. Mr.
Kvam feels it may work toward lowering prices in the area. Mr. Sjovangen also asked how much
of the Moundhouse area is on Natural Gas. He didn’t know, but he had asked Southwest Gas if
they could connect to the end of their system, but they said no as there is not enough pressure.
We would have to connect to the Piute line.

Mr. Kvam explained that there will be a surcharge, but there will still be a significant savings
even with it. Pat Whitten asked what the rates are now. Mr. Kvam said it was at $.80 and has
gone up to about $1.00. Mr. Whitten said he just argued with Amerigas over $3.56 per gallon for
propane.

5




10.

Marshall McBride asked about acquiring utility right of way or could we use existing right of
way under NV Energy or NDOT. NV Energy and Southwest Gas both have departments that
handle right of ways. Pat Whitten mentioned that the county owes Mr. Kvam a big debt of
gratitude for his volunteerism on this project.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Public Hearing to extend the Storey County Infrastructure
Tax and approve the plan of projects to be funded by the tax.

County Manager Pat Whitten said that as Lance Gilman was suddenly called back to Washington
DC, he has asked that we continue with the hearing and public comment and defer any decisions
until he is back in January.

Nicole Barde, Virginia City Highlands Resident would appreciate more information. She wants
to know how much was in the last fund, what was it spent on, and was there any overlap with it
and the capital projects fund. Is part of this infrastructure fund going to be to construct and
physically deal with the tunnel, the depot, and other things, or is part of it going to be going
toward interest and principle on the bond we just floated?

Pat Whitten said that they were just hearing public comment right now, but that there is no intent
to pay bond principle and interest from this account where you see V&T Depot Purchase, V&T
restoration, and Gold Hill restoration. He also clarified that this is not a new tax, but a
refreshment of a tax that has been on the books for quite some time. Getting you the list should
be quite easy and Comptroller Hugh Gallagher can take care of that. We had a list that has been
expired and now it is time to build a new list for use of that same tax. He also answered Ms.
Bard that there is no carry over in terms of projects, but in terms of money absolutely.

Ms. Barde also questioned the title of the fund as “Infrastructure Capitol Projects” which seems
to be a blended title that creates a grey area. Pat Whitten clarified that the board has adopted a
plan for expenditures out of the “Infrastructure Special Revenue” fund, so there is no reference to
Capitol fund and that they intend to rely on the V& T Rail commission for payment on any bond
indebtedness.

Dale Beach, Storey County Resident is upset that this was put on the agenda and the general
public has no idea what it is. He would like to have copies of materials given to Ms. Bard. Upset
that they got two street lights and no erosion control in the last ten years. He feels Mark Twain is
not getting its share and they need more details.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher said he would get Nicole and Dale exact details, and explained that
this plan began in 2002 for a new roof on one of the schools of about $300k, another for about a
$20k repair on one of the schools, and the repair of some water lines. That plan has been
completed, so consequently we now are trying to put another plan in place. In conjunction with
that, Bob Morris is making an attempt to clean up some of the language so that we may move
forward with less ambiguity. He went on to explain the some of the funds and their different
functions and how they may be used for interim financing.




Pat Whitten explained that the activity in TRI causes spikes in the income for this account. He
also explained that this is a list of dream projects and they each need to be discussed. He went
through the list and briefly explained each one. He said that they are willing to listen to
proposals concerning erosion control and they just need to be presented.

Bob Morris asked that if the motion is continued to a date certain of January 7%, Pat Whitten
asked it to go out to January 215t to give them more time to gather information.

Motion: Continue the public hearing to extend the Storey County Infrastructure Tax and approval of
the plan of projects to be funded by the tax to January 21, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-
Chairman McBride by Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance 13-251, an ordinance amending
Storey County Code Chapter 3.12 to identify sales tax components, moving the Tourism
Promotion tax from chapter 3.56 to chapter 3.12, to add a provision to update the purpose for the
proceeds of the infrastructure tax, and providing for other properly related matters.

Deputy District Attorney, Robert Morris said that one of the things this ordinance does is to bring the
code in 3.12 up to what is current in the NRS. Pat Whitten wants it to be clear that since the
infrastructure plan is embedded in this ordinance that there will be changes between the first and
second readings in that area specifically. He also would like to be sure that the work is done on the
list updates. He wants to schedule a workshop as part of the meeting on January 7t to do so.

Motion: Approve First reading of Ordinance 13-251, an ordinance amending Storey County Code
Chapter 3.12 to identify sales tax components, moving the Tourism Promotion tax from chapter 3.56
to chapter 3.12, to add a provision to update the purpose for the proceeds of the infrastructure, and
providing for other properly related matters. Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride by
Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Interlocal agreement between Storey County and the
VCTC for County Services, resolution 13-384 - Continued at the request of the Chairman during
the approval of the Agenda.

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Requested by Mark Joseph Phillips: Shall the Board of
County Commissioners be increased to five members, pursuant to NRS 244.011 (1)

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident would like the item continued.

County Manager Pat Whitten - Going to five commissioners does not automatically give Gold Hill or
Mark Twain their own commissioners. It is dependent on redistricting. The cost involves salary and
benefits and can be anywhere from $88k to $110k not including additional staff that may become

7




necessary, conference expenses, travel, etc. He continued to present numbers on representation
based on census and voter registration. He has further research information comparing other
districts as well.

Dale Beach, Storey County Resident feels he will have more representation by having his own
commissioner from his own neighborhood. He wants to see voting separated into districts instead of
county-wide.

Kris Thompson asks the commission to decline this proposal due to the added expense as well as the
scope of representation. One for every 1500 residence seems very good. What makes this county
strong is the responsiveness of the small government.

John Miller does not believe we need the extra commissioners. He feels all the commissioners have
helped the River District. If the people want representation, they need to come to the meetings and
voice their opinions as a group.

Scott Jolcover, Storey County Business Owner and Landowner, read a letter from Corrado
DeGasperis:

Dear Sirs,

I would first like to commend you all on serving the County in the engaged, effective manner that you
always have. I have publically stated, on many occasions, that Storey County seems to have the people,
the care and the capability to effectively govern an incredibly diverse, dynamic economy and
community. It has effectively reinvented itself and is responsibly developing itself toward a sustainable
future while always attending and protecting the unique qualities of life in the County amidst such
great diversity.

Sadly, many governmental entities have not had similar effectiveness. I believe one of the reasons is that
the County is small in population but large in opportunity and the people repeatedly elect competent,
vested leaders who care aboul ifs future.

Considering this success, I believe changing the number of commissioner seats to five, from the current
three, especially when the Planning Commission has been so effective and engaged, with a larger
makeup of 7, would not only add complexity and cost, but it could meaningfully retard the progress so
nimbly being made. We have strong representative and engaged government. Why change something
so effective?

By comparison, Lyon County currently has 1 commissioner for every 10,000+ citizens and Storey
County has 1 commissioner for every 1,500+ citizens and 1 commissioner for every 950+ voting
citizens!! I would not be supportive of such a change.

Kindest Regards,
Corrado DeGasperis

Mr. Jolcover feels it is disingenuous of Mark to refer to “the people” of any one area when he speaks.
Those people need to come speak if they have something to say. The people need to elect the person

8




they want sitting in your seat to represent them. If it isn’t broke, don't fix it.

Clay Mitchell, Gold Hill Resident, would encourage the community to continue to look at the subject
and responsiveness of government. He does not support the proposal, but would like to continue the
conversation for the future.

County Manager Pat Whitten has submitted an attached letter expressing his position against the
proposal and pointed out the potential for divisiveness and acrimony in the public governance
process. He also read Lance Gilman’s letter expressing his position against the proposal into the
record.

Vice-Chairman McBride expressed his position against the proposal.

Chairman Sjovangen expressed his position against the proposal based on population and land mass
area to manage. He prefers to put money to better use in specialized positions such as Senior
Planner/ Administrative Officer Austin Osborne, and Fire Chief, Gary Hames. The three current
commissioners all represent the entire county at large. We attend every meeting of importance,
which wasn’t always true in the past. We sit on more boards and committees across the state and the
nation than many other county commissioners. We take our jobs seriously. There were two seats
available in Mark Twain and one in Gold Hill that no one ran for. The same goes for women on the
commission. A name has to be put on the ballot. My opinion is that there is no appetite for five
commissioners because no one is here to argue intelligently for it. As far as getting things done in
your community, it really helps us if you make us a clear concise list of what needs to be done in
writing.

Dale Beach thinks people don’t come to the meetings because they have to work. He accused Lance
Gilman of hand-picking five people for the neighborhood committee that was supposed to be for the
county, and is now a community center committee. Pat Whitten explained that Commissioner
Gilman did not appoint the Mark Twain community center group. It was properly agendized and
brought up in a public meeting and voted on by the board. Mr. Sjovangen explained that it is a
private group like any other community center group.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident accepts the challenge to form a political action
committee and get 600 signatures to address the proposal within six months.

No motion made.
14. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
Dale Beach, Storey County Resident ~ would like Richard Bacus to help with determining the
drainage problems. Chairman Sjovangen asked again for him identify the problem and put it in

writing and turn it over to public works. District Attorney, Bill Maddox suggested that he ask
Richard Bacus to help him.




15.

16.

Kris Thompson wanted to note that Lance Gilman was the driving force in turning that facility
over for public use. The complaint to the Secretary of State by Mr. Phillips has been dismissed.
He re-read a letter previously read into record.

Marilee Miller, River District Resident defended and commended the board of the community
center.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident - on the subject of financial disclosure statements,
the County Clerk’s office has just published their list of appointed officers who need to file. He
congratulated three new appointed officers, Senior Planner/Administrative Officer Austin
Osborne, Community Services Director, Deny Dotson, and Jeff Nevin, with an appointment at
the school board. I did waive my right to confidentiality in regard to my complaint to the
Election Integrity board concerning Lance Gilman when I put my complaint on record here and
with the newspaper. He asked who owns Piper’s Opera House. Bill Maddox said the school
board has taken it over for their liberal arts functions.

BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment) Heard following item 7 at the request
of the Chairman

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at the call of the Chairman at 12:59pm

Respectfully submitted,

By

Vanessa Stephens, Clerrk-Treasurer

10




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 21, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for January 7, 2014

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted,

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.
5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
5[5 Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

anty Manager - Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[ Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

| NN —

Agenda Item No. (0




STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING

TUESDAY, JANUARY 7™, 2014 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
BILL SJOVANGEN BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MARSHALL MCBRIDE
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman Sjovangen, Vice-Chairman Marshall McBride, Commissioner Gilman, District
Attorney Bill Maddox, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher,
Community Development Director Dean Haymore, Public Works Director Mike Nevin, Fire Chief
Gary Hames, Emergency Management/Grants Cherie Nevin, Community Services/Tourism Deny
Dotson, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro and Government Affairs Director Greg “Bum” Hess

1. CALLTO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 10:03am

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for January 7, 2014

Chairman Sjovangen asked that item “M” under the first reading of Business Licenses read
“Mustang Ranch Mercantile.”

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident ~Agenda item 15, board comments, is placed in the
middle of the meeting. I refer to the minutes of the meeting of September 3, 2013. Item number 8
was approval of placement of general public comment to immediately precede board comment.

Motion: Approve the agenda for January 7, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman
McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

4. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN TO THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD
OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE TERM OF ONE YEAR Pursuant to Storey County Code
2.04.008




Chairman Sjovangen nominated Vice-Chairman McBride to serve as Chairman,

Motion: Elect Marshal McBride as Chairman of the Commission, Action: Approve Moved by
Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
Chairman Sjovangen nominated Commissioner Gilman to serve as Vice-Chairman

Motion: Elect Lance Gilman as Vice-Chairman of the Commission, Action: Approve Moved by
Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Commissioner McBride

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

5. APPOINTMENTS TO SERVE ON STATE, COUNTY AND REGIONAL BOARDS
1. Safety Committee - To be determined by Safety Committee (was Shannon Gardner) - Chair;
Vanessa Stephens - Vice Chair (Remains the same)
Legislative Representative - Bill Sjovangen with all others, including staff as needed
Historic Fourth Ward School and Museum Board - Bill Sjovangen (Remains the same)
NACO - Bill Sjovangen with Austin Osborne as secondary (Remains the same)
Nevada Works - Lance Gilman with Austin Osborne as secondary (Remains the same)
Virginia City Senior Center - Cherie Nevin (was Maggie Lowther)
Lockwood Senior Center - Lance Gilman, Cherie Nevin and Maggie Lowther (adding Cherie
Nevin)
8. St. Mary’s Art Center - Bill Sjovangen (Remains the same)
9. Western Nevada Development District - Dean Haymore (Remains the same)
10. Carson Water Sub conservancy District - Austin Osborne (Remains the same)
11. State Land Use Planning Advisory Council - Austin Osborne with Dean Haymore as
secondary (Remains the same)
12. Natural Resources Conservation District (USDA) - Dean Haymore (Remains the same)
13. Truckee River Flood Management Authority (Technical Advisory Committee) - Lance Gilman
with Austin Osborne and Dessie Redmond as alternates (Adding Dessie)
14. Comstock Historic District - Marshall McBride (Remains the same)
15. Nevada Commuission for the Reconstruction of the V& T Railway - Bill Sjovangen (Remains the
same)
16. Virginia City Tourism Commission - Bill Sjovangen (Remains the same)
17. Oversight of Fire and Public Works - Marshall McBride (Remains the same)
18. Economic Development - Lance Gilman (Remains the same)
a. EDAWN - Lance Gilman
b. NNDA - Lance Gilman

NONOEe®N

Dale Beach addressed his concerns regarding appointment 6 and 7 in that there were three people
doing the same job as one. With number 17 he suggested a meeting for the public to address
concerns over what they feel they are not getting out of these two agencies. He also suggested
removing some director positions in order to put money into the community. Vice-Chairman
Gilman stated he is appointed to the Lockwood Senior Center due to it being with in his district. Pat

2




Whitten explained that Marshall McBride does not “supervise” these agencies, but serves as a point
of contact for him with these agencies.

Jennifer Millsap Barnes - The third Wednesday of every month at 6:30pm there is a meeting in Mark
Twain community center to allow the public to bring their concerns to the board. This may be a

better option than ranting and raving at the commission meeting.

Motion: Approve appointments to serve on state, county and regional board’s Action: Approve
Moved by Vice-Chairman Gilman Seconded by Commissioner Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

Pat Whitten stated for public record Mike Nevin serves on the Carson Truckee Conservancy,
which is an appointment by Governor Sandoval.

Chairman McBride also clarified that although he is appointed by this board to the Comstock Historic
District, that that is also a gubernatorial appointment.

6. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for August 20, 2013

Motion: Approve minutes of August 20, 2013, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
7. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for September 3, 2013

Motion: Approve minutes of September 3, 2013, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for October 1, 2013

Motion: Approve minutes of October 1, 2013, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for October 15, 2013

Motion: Approve minutes of October 15, 2013, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA

3




(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

10. Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 12/06/13 for $461,149.80, 12/12/13
for $10,549.23, 12/20/13 for $338,046.18 and Accounts Payable date 11/27/13 for $175,763.02,
12/05/13 for $625.71, 12/13/13 for $402,380.48 and $3,086.00 and 12/17/13 for $186,496.84 and
$8,033.39

11. For possible action approval of updated MOU between the Storey County Fire Protection District
and the Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association.

12. For possible action approval of Administrative Policies and Procedures ~ Travel Policy Mileage
Rate

13. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:

a.
b.
C.

5H AT e o

T

w

u.
V.
W,

AUSENCO PSI, LLC - Contractor/1320 willow Pass Road, Concord, CA (Engineer)
PROTECH COATINGS - Contractor/9911 South 500 west, Sandy, UT (Contractor)
NEVADA TRAVEL CONNECTION - Home Business/399 Wild Horse Canyon, Sparks
(Travel Agent)

FRONTIER CRANE - Contractor/3445 Golden Valley, Reno (Crane Rental Service)

DESERT AIR, LLC - Contractor/1995 Boise Drive, Sparks (HVAC Contractor)

R.F. MACDONALD CO - Contractor/8565 White Fir 5t., Reno (Boiler Sales & Service)
CROWN BEVERAGES, INC. - General/600 Spice Island Dr., Sparks (Beverage Distributor)
TAFHOE RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, LL.C - Developer/420 USA Pkwy, TRI
SOUDRONIC, LIMITED - Contractor/465 North State Rd, Manor, NY (Can Manufacturer
Machinery)

ARROW CONSTRUCTION - Contractor/100 Ave of the Couleurs, Rainbow Bend

PORT OF SUBS (WALMART) - General/2155 USA Parkway, TRI

MUSTANG RAMCH EMPORIUM, LLC - General/5 N C Street (Restaurant & Retail) VC

. MUSTANG RANCH MERCANTILE, LLC - General/ 62 N C Street (Retail} VC

EUCLID CHEMICAL COMPANY - Contractor/3735 Green Rd., Beachwood, OH (Concrete
Supplier)

COMSTOCK VISIONS, INC. - Nonprofit/150 North Summit (Event Promotion) VC
HEATTEK, INC. - Contractor/PO Box 347, Ixonia, WI (Can Equipment Installation)
TRINITY ALARMS, INC. - Contractor/660 Buckskin Drive, Fernley (Alarm Installer)
MOUNTAIN FOAM & COATING - Contractor/305 Highway 395, Washoe Valley
(Contractor)

MINDEN HEATING & AIR - Contractor/2701 Gordon Avenue, Minden (HVAC Contractor)
STERLING PRODUCTS, INC. - Contractor/1100 East Woodfield, Schaumburg, IL
(Equipment Installation)

AEC, INC - Contractor/1100 East Woodfield, Schaumburg, IL (Equipment Installation)
RAPID CONSTRUCTION - Contractor/3072 Research Way, Carson City (Contractor)
AFFORDABLE FILTRATION - Contractor/999 Ridgeview Drive, Reno (Water Filtration)




END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Vice-Chairman Gilman abstained from the vote due to having interest in two of the licenses.

Motion: Approve consent agenda for January 7, 2014 with correction item M to read Mustang
Ranch Mercantile, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Chairman
McBride

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

14. DISCUSSION (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Fire Chief Gary Hames

We have a Safer grant that established some recruitment funds and is going very well. We
have between 9 and 11 new volunteers in the pipeline.

On February 6%, contingent on State approval, we will be starting an EMT basic course for
our Volunteer Fire Department.

We have exhausted the hiring list through the consortium. With that, we are advertising
for reserve firefighters in the newspapers currently.

We are working with the Division of Forestry on fuel reduction projects. We've had our
own internal grant for this and will be doing some work on the corridors of the One Acre
Association. We are also working with NDF to do some reductions of dead and dying
fuels in Six-Mile Canyon and along Lousetown Road.

We are working with the comptroller to apply for the USDA Engine Replacement which
will hopefully be on the next meeting’s agenda.

Community Services/Tourism Deny Dotson

Looking at the quarter cent tax that the VCTC is partially funded by, for the first four
months of August through October we are over $12k up compared to a year ago. Last
year we came in for the year at about $170k and budgeted for $150, so it is a good start to
the fiscal year.

As we plan the 2014 special event calendar, we just finished the draft of the rack card
showing our list of events in Virginia City. (He handed a copy to the commissioners).

We are also working in small meetings and groups to help fill the void between Monday
and Thursday throughout the year. Staff is putting together a presentation for the VCTC
board on this coming Thursday that will unveil our plans for that.

We are also putting together our budget for 2014-15.

We will be hosting a Merchants’ Mixer at the Crystal Bar on January 16t at 5:30pm.

Community Chest Pam Abercrombie

We had a very successful fundraising event for the library and would like to thank the
commissioners and staff for helping us to double our match to the grant. Since that, we
have increased the budget by about $2600, bringing our total budget to $49,693. We do
have the position for the librarian posted at 30hrs per week, and have had three
applications and are looking for more in order to get someone qualified with library
experience. We've received a grant from the Leonette Foundation. We asked for $20k and

5




received $2k, but it still helped our budget. Pam then presented some stats on the library
and its usage that she hopes will improve with the hiring of a librarian.

” A Treasure Chest for Community Chest” fundraiser was held and pulled in quite a few
donations for our youth program. The library received an E-Reader and a color printer
(saving us trips to Kinko’s). The children’s’ counseling program received quite a few
counseling tools. The food program as well as the pre-school program also received quite
a bit,

Public Works Director Mike Nevin

The ARV (air release valve) project on the water line from Lakeview to Virginia City is
100% complete. The final inspection was conducted by representatives of Farr West
Engineering, Coon’s Construction and I on December 18, 2013. There were a few very
minor items that needed to be addressed resulting from the final inspection. A couple of
bolts and a plumbing fitting needed tightening. These were corrected the same afternoon.
The final hold out payment of 10% has been approved and paid to Coon’s Construction.
We noticed that the pressure has remained constant, and it is working as designed.

You will notice that new or replacement “NO PARKING ANYTIME” signs have been
installed at B Street intersections. These include the intersections of B and Taylor, B and
Union and B and Sutton streets. Some are additional and some replaced with what the no
parking zone actually means. It was necessary to install these as our snowplows were
having difficulties maneuvering these intersections during winter storms.

During the couple of early storms that we did see in early December we experienced a
couple of significant equipment breakdowns. Our main Virginia City snowplow lost a
power steering unit and our main brine truck for TRI had to have the front end replaced.
These two repairs affected our equipment maintenance budget by about $5,000.00.

As indicated by representatives of the BLM during a planning commission meeting back in
November, we expect the BLM to be issuing final approval for the land transfer of the
property occupied by the wastewater treatment plant by the end of this week. The final
phases of the environmental sensitivity analysis are being completed and it is our hopes
that the project for the new wastewater plant may finally be getting close to going to bid.
While the weather cannot decide if it is winter or spring it gives us an opportunity to
commence some spring type work in the Industrial Park. Crews will be out there all this
week cleaning and eliminating built up tumble weed deposits along the guardrails,
culverts and drainages. We have also replaced over 30 damaged road guide posts and
markers and if the weather holds next week we will be doing some additional crack sealing
along portions of USA Parkway from Waltham Way to Denmark Drive.

As a result in the recent changes with board of directors seats on the VCHPOA positive
working relationships are beginning to immerge. The new VCHPOA president, Jay
Carmona and I meet to go over operations of mutual interests to both organizations. He
was appreciative of the insight I provided on what we do and how we function. Hopefully
with a somewhat new board out there we are off on the right foot in the hopes of building a
productive working relationship.

Adam Robello Chairman of the Mark Twain Community Center

We are hoping to get a Facebook page going for the center this month.
Last month we had a Christimas dinner that went well with about 50 in attendance.




¢ We will discuss other things coming up in our meeting on the third Wednesday of the
month,

Emergency Management/Grants Cherie Nevin

* The Six Mile Canyon FEMA mitigation grant for storm drainage improvements that was
started back in 2009 is finally moving forward. We are waiting for funds to be available,
which will be after February when Congress approves a budget. We are working with
Chief Hames to combine efforts of our two grant programs.

e The CDBG grant applications for Canyon GID and the VC Senior Center will be hand
delivered this afternoon.

¢ Access to Healthcare Network, a non-profit organization connecting Nevadans who need
affordable healthcare with providers and services, has been making visits to both Senior
Centers both in Virginia City and Lockwood. I have contact information for them for
anyone who needs it. We are also working on getting them to the Mark Twain area as
well as the Highlands.

County Manager Pat Whitten believes this is also a great opportunity to re-introduce the NACO
prescription and dental programs. Chairman McBride said that they have not yet received the
literature on the dental program yet, but there is another program for professional services they
can look into as well. This should be very informative and helpful not only for the public and the
commissioners, but also for the department heads.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher
* At the next meeting we will embark on a project that has never been done before. In the
spirit of disclosing as much as we can to the public, we are going to go over the unaudited
financial statements and related budget for the first 6 months of the fiscal year ending
December 30, 2013.

*  Would like to remind our elected and appointed officials that there is a financial disclosure
statement due January 15, 2014. If anyone needs assistance with it they can go to the
website or come to us.

* This Friday we will be meeting with the Department of Taxation regarding the proper
collection and distribution of sales tax for the industrial park, Lockwood, Mark Twain, and
the Highlands. We need to work with them to get our proper portion of collected taxes.
Internet sales are now charging sales tax. It's important for the Highlands especially; to be
sure they are being charged the Storey County rate and not the Washoe County rate.

Marshall McBride also noted that there is Federal Legislation pending on gross sales of over a
million dollars that will be significant as more and more internet business is being done as
opposed to bricks and mortar that is short-changing local governments from collecting sales-tax.

Administrative Officer/Senior Planner Austin Osborne

¢ This is the year we will be opening collective bargaining for two of our unions, and a
portion of AFSME’s union. The Fire union discussion has started. He has completed an
analysis of all the county benefits compared regionally (Washoe, Lyon, Douglas, Carson
City).

¢ Itis also time for healthcare bidding which is non-union based. We are going through the
process of determining what providers and benefits will be available and at what costs.

7




We should know what we are looking at in about a month. There is an insurance benefits
committee that has already met once that is for employees to come up with ideas to make
benefits better and keep costs under control. RFP has been posted for an insurance
brokerage firm as well.

Comstock Mining requested a zone and master plan change from suburban residential to
low density rural residential on 80 acres immediately south of Silver City in Lyon County
which was unanimously approved by their board. This will allow Comstock to do
exploration in that area and apply for a special use permit in the future for mining
operations.

The Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for January 16t at 6pm. There will be a
presentation by Dessie Redmond on form-based planning which instead of segregating
uses, looks at the types of uses and how they work together and which can be integrated
with our current zoning ordinance. Also, there will be discussion with no action on the
potential for developing a county wide residential growth limitation ordinance.

[ will be coordinating with Gary Hames’ fuels reduction program on noxious weed
treatment in Six and Seven Mile Canyons as well as Virginia City and Gold Hill to be sure
that we are not spraying weeds designated for fuels reduction.

Community Development Dean Haymore

He recognized Shannon Gardner and Stacey Bucchianeri. Every five years we are audited
by FEMA and ISO. FEMA audited us on the CRS flood reduction program which was
completely revamped this year. We were the only county in the state to continue our
rating of seven without losing points. What that means to the Rainbow Bend residents is a
15% rate reduction in their flood insurance. We also just completed an ISO five year rating
which rates the fire department and the building department. The building department
received a rating of 2 out of 10 with 1 being the best and 10 being the worst which is the
highest of any small county in the state of Nevada.

As of yesterday another new company started moving into a 525k sq. ft. facility that
started construction June 30% of this year. So in less than six months, we have another
company that will create 240 new jobs.

A major can manufacturing plant is under construction. I will begin meetings with
contractors from all over the world tonight that will be coming in to install 62 million
doliars” worth of equipment. This is one of the reason you are seeing so many business
licenses issued to companies from all over the world and the US. So we are pleasantly
busy and expecting to do another couple million sq. ft. of businesses starting right off in
this New Year.

Sheriff Gerald Antinoro

Holidays were uneventful from the Public Safety perspective.

Last meeting he mentioned the coroner’s budget. Unfortunately we continue have
residents pass away under questionable circumstances. The expenses are now at 200% of
budget.

The aging fleet is starting to have problems. A couple vehicles need front-ends rebuilt,
and suspensions and four-wheel drives are not cheap. Also, there are a couple of
transmission problems.




15.

* The jail fund needs to be resolved before budget is discussed. I've read the supporting
document on item 20 of today’s agenda and still don't know where that is going, so we
need clarification.

* On the 28" the Highlands HOA did their annual road closure to maintain their private
road status. Commissioner Sjovangen asked if all of Lousetown was closed from the
intersection of SR341. Sheriff Antinoro was not sure of the details on it, but there have
been no specific questions and they did meet the spirit of the law.

District Attorney Bill Maddox

Mr. Maddox Introduced Anne Langer as the new Deputy District Attorney. Ms. Langer
provided a history of her experience from the gallery. District Attorney Maddox explained she
will be doing the criminal cases for the next couple of months allowing him to focus on the civil
matters.

County Manager Pat Whitten

Mr. Whitten expanded on the subject of internet tax, and reminded appointed and elected
officials that ethics filings are due along with financial filings on January 15%, There may not be a
March 4% meeting as the Board and Manager will be in Washington DC. He thanked Deny
Dotson and a small committee for their work on the Gold Hill Train Depot. He also thanked
Commissioner Sjovangen for his service as Chairman.

BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
Commissioner Sjovangen

* NACO (Nevada Assoc. of Counties) has filed a Federal Lawsuit against BLM for non-
enforcement of the Wild Horse and Borrow Act of 1971. They are asking that the BLM
lives up to what was originally written with regard to proper management of the horses,
recognition of farmers’ and ranchers” water rights, conducting proper herd counts and
other things. The Nevada Cattlemen’s Association and some of the wild horse activists
groups are supporting and working with us.

* He has attended two or three meetings concerning sage grouse and their potential of being
listed as a federally threatened or endangered species, or if it will be up to the states to
manage. There is a potential issue if they are listed that might require additional work be
done before building. Senators Heller and Reed are opposed to the listing and have
introduced a bill draft that asks that about 1.5 million acres be set aside as a wilderness
area for sage grouse.

e Community Grant program proposal has been sent to Cherie Nevin and Pat Whitten. He
has asked for $40,000 in next year’s budget that could accumulate. Projects would have to
be allowed by NRS and benefit the community at large,

Chairman McBride
* Bob DuFresne passed away last week. He played High School basketball in Virginia City
and worked for and retired from NDOT. He was a member of the Jeep Pose and active in
community service. He is preceded in death by his wife, Lorraine, who was a very good
friend of mine and worked for the County for many years. They had three children, two
of which currently work for the County. Rob is a fireman, Johnny works for the water
department, and Kelli also lives locally.

9




16.

17.

Vice-Chairman Gilman

¢ He and Mr. Hess went back to Washington DC to work on funding for the USA Parkway
project to move the roadway and connect to HWY. 50. For the last two years there has
been an environmental study underway which will be completed around the first of
February and has resulted in a positive report. The next step is to have FHWA (Federal
Highway Assoc.) review and validate that report. With that in hand we may go on the
state STIP (State Transportation Improvement Projects) for construction and move to the
next phase, design, which could take six months to two years. FHWA decided they would
not review the report until all the funding for the roadway was identified. Well the folks
in Washington can’t identify funding until you are on the state STIP. Mark Amodei stood
very tall for us and immediately made meetings with FHWA and NDOT during the
holidays and made progress. I also expect good word from Mr. Reed’s office this week.

Chairman McBride called a recess at 11:14am; the meeting was called to order at 11:40am

DISCUSSION (No Action): Update from Executive Director Gary Longaker on Nevada Rural
Housing Authority and the Home at Last programs.

Gary Longaker provided the annual report to the Board for review. He discussed the Nevada
Rural Housing Authority and its functions and projects as well as the housing study and
brochure included the packet.

Commissioner Gilman asked how this program fits in with the Disabled Veterans and Native
American housing loan programs. Mr. Longaker explained there is currently planning with
Douglas County for building a Veteran’s facility. Pat Whitten expressed how satisfying it is to
have these programs to help our citizens. www.nvrural.org is a great resource.

DISCUSSION (No Action): Workshop on whether to extend the Storey County Infrastructure
Tax and the plan of projects to be funded by the tax.

Mr. Gallagher thanked the Board for holding the workshop. He has been through the history of
the expenditures since 2002, which have been basically water tanks and school projects. He
reviewed the history of the NRS that applies to this infrastructure tax and governs the allowable
projects. He reviewed the list of proposed infrastructure expenditures and recommended that
staff come back with comments regarding priorities. Some of these projects can be done in other
venues, such as the budget process and capital projects, but with the industrial park, he believes
it must be done because it is a lifeline and the infrastructure process may be too slow.

County Manager Pat Whitten wanted everyone to keep in mind that with the potential to
purchase and restore the Train Depot in Virginia City and Gold Hill, there is a pending dispute
on the money owed us by the rail commission. These are things to consider, but they are just
options for this list and we need to consider priority of each of these projects as they come in and
out of this list. He whole-heartedly agrees that the roads in TRI need to be fixed.

Nicole Barde, Highlands resident, wants to know what process will be used to prioritize these
projects as some are county and some are community based. Pat Whitten explained that the
annual budgeting process (tentative and final) would be used by staff to determine priorities.

10




18.

Lance Gilman noted that it will be an ongoing process as things change to re-prioritize as grant
funds become available, or emergencies happen. Commissioner Sjovangen agreed that public
input is important. Lance Gilman said he sees these items as place-holders and collecting
revenue is also part of it. Pat Whitten re-iterated that the budgeting process works with the staff
meeting twice a month to discuss all these things.

Dale Beach, Storey County Resident likes the list, but wants to see someone come to Mark Twain
to research the drainage problem and present a plan. He complained that he is still waiting for
action on a $100 water stand in the park. He wants to see a workshop in Mark Twain. Lance
Gilman asked Dale if he had an infrastructure suggestion. He said he has problems with the
ditches that flood and it is being ignored. He also has problems with some of the signage. Mr.
Gilman referred to the last meeting where it was suggested he call Richard Bacus to help him.
Mr. Beach felt a week wasn’t enough to do all the research on it. Mr. Gilman again asked him to
compose a list of his concerns for them to review. Mr. Beach is concerned that he doesn’t have
the expertise to provide the detail needed, but the commission again explained that this is a
workshop and that they are only looking for his list of concerns in writing. Mr. Beach would
rather the workshop was held in Mark Twain.

Jennifer Millsap-Barnes stated that a drinking fountain Mr. Beach is asking for does not cost $100,
but $2450. This is why we need you (Mr. Beach) to submit a list so we know what is being
requested in each community.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident thought that the DA/Sheriff Building purchase
was already paid off. This is the first he’s heard of the Justice Court Building purchase for
$450,000. He feels this building is working fine for the purchase. County Manager Pat Whitten
was glad to have the opportunity to explain that they have been looking into the problem of
running two courts out of a very small office for over a year. He reiterated that this is a place-
holder for an item to be discussed, and there may be solutions that come up for a lesser cost.

Pat Whitten mentioned that missing on the list is $25,000 for Painted Rock for necessary
maintenance and safety issues with the bridge.

District Attorney, Bill Maddox added that this list is a necessary part of the ordinance and must
be there to pass it. It is not set in stone, but it must exist.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Inter-local agreement between Storey County and the
VCTC for County Services, resolution 13-384

Deputy District Attorney, Robert Morris: This matter was continued by the Board to this date to
allow the VCTC board to review the interlocal agreement. The VCTC has approved the
agreement with a minor change to include the word “may”. The Nevada Department of
Taxation has expressed concerns with the process used by Storey County to rename its fair and
recreation board form the VCCTA to the VCTC and how the fair and recreation board’s funding
and budget would work. After meeting with the department and discussing their concerns, the
department requested that the county enter into an agreement with the VCTC about payment for
county services for human resources, fiscal reporting and any other services.

1




19.

Mr. Phillips objects to “shall” being changed to “may.” At the last meeting he informed the
VCTC that he couldn't find anything in NRS that requires the District Attorney to act as legal
counsel for the board.

Nicole Bard, Virginia City Highlands Resident asked if VCTC is a stand-alone organization such
as the fire department. She wants to examine other interlocal agreements to check for
consistency and doesn’t understand the need for such a detailed interlocal if they are part of the
county. Deputy District Attorney, Robert Morris explained that the State sees it as a separate
local government entity, but under the section that allows the county to create a fair and
recreation board it is part of the county. We are doing this interlocal agreement at the request of
the Department of Taxation. Nicole Bard still wondered about the organizational operation piece
in the agreement as the VCTC operates under a board of directors. Mr. Morris explained that if
we were to provide that service, the agreement allows us to bill for it. Pat Whitten explained that
“operational oversight” means payroll, vouchers, budget items, phone systems and any number
of things.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher clarified that as a separate government entity they are a major
financial component part and therefore may be combined in the county financial statements.
This is a generally accepted accounting and governmental standard. This saves us a tremendous
amount of money in the long run and gives us a good view of what the county position is.

Motion: Approve resolution 13-384 an inter-local agreement between Storey County and the
VCTC for County Services, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by
Vice-Chairman Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
REF. ITEM 14 STAFF COMMENTS

District Attorney, Bill Maddox interjected to staff comments:

Mr. Maddox explained that he does not typically do legal work outside his responsibilities as
D.A., and is supposed to get commission approval to do so, but recently Saint Mary’s Retreat and
Art Center had a legal problem arise. They are not technically a subdivision of the county, but he
brought it to the County Manager’s attention and went ahead and represented them. Maybe a
discussion may be agendized, but we have several local entities that we have associations with
that are not technically political subdivisions of the County. In some cases we own the land and
building such as Fourth Ward and the Senior Center and are run by 501C3s. In the future he will
always bring it to the attention of the County Manager, and perhaps they can discuss the process
further and formulate a more formal policy. County Manager Pat Whitten and Vice-Chairman
Gilman both agreed that it is in the County’s best interest to resolve legal issues quickly and
efficiently for these entities especially when they operate on County owned property and
perform services that directly benefit it.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval Resolution 14-388 to approve Wells Fargo as the
lender for a $3,002,000 Interim Debenture for the purpose of building a new Wastewater
Treatment Facility.

12




Mr. Gallagher stated this is a housekeeping item that has already been approved. Wells Fargo
and the USDA have requested a resolution approving the loan.

WHERAS, the current Wastewater Treatment Plant is obsolete and not in compliance with
current standards and

WHERAS, Storey County has contracted with the United States Department of Agriculture
(USDA) to finance the cost of a new Wastewater Treatment plant that is estimated at $5,314,794 of
which $3,002,000 will come in the form of a USDA Rural Development Loan and

WHERAS, Wells Fargo has been selected as the lender for the $3,002,000 Interim Debenture

THEREFORE BE IT KNOWN to all present that the Board of County Commissioners of Storey
County hereby selected Wells Fargo Bank as lender for $3,002,000 Interim Loan

Motion: Approve resolution 14-388 to approve Wells Fargo as the lender for a $3,002,000 Interim
Debenture for the purpose of building a new Wastewater Treatment Facility, Action: Approve
Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:  Approval of Comptroller's recommendations for
corrective action regarding Certified Audit for the year ended June 30, 2013

Mr. Gallagher asked the board to approve the recommendations that will then go to the
Department of Taxation. He has run it by them and they are in concurrence with the procedures
proposed to solve the problems. Vice-Chairman Gilman requested that the accounting
department develop procedures to handle areas where it indicates that they will “pay closer
attention.” He also wants to know plan and the source of repayment on item number 7. Hugh
Gallagher explained that that would be one of the items that will be discussed in the next
meeting when they go through the budgetary process. Pat Whitten clarified that discussions are
in process for clarifying or eliminating the jail fund before the budgetary process is complete.

Motion: Approve Comptroller’s recommendations for corrective action regarding Certified Audit
for the year ended June 30, 2013 and that the Comptroller addresses the recommendation creating
verifiable procedures that will be followed in implementing the actions, Action: Approve Moved
by Vice-Chairman Gilman Seconded by Commissioner Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
21. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

a. MATRIX LEADERSHIP, LLC ~ General/322 Bayhill Circle, Dayton (Consultant)
b. NEOPOST USA, INC - General/478 Wheelers Farms Rd, Milford, CT (postage machine

rental)
c. BIGGE CRANE & RIGGING - Contractor/10700 Bigge St, San Leandro, CA (crane cont.)

13




d. HIGHLANDS HOME REPAIR - Contractor/14500 Geronimo Trail, Reno (contractor)

©

cont.)
CANLINE USA - Contractor/ 6525 Commonwealth, Roanoke, VA (contractor)
KAREN A COSTA - General/60 Horseshoe Circle, Reno (auctioneer)
NPB AUTOMATION AB - Contractor/53302 Jonkoping, Sweden (contractor - Ardagh)
INTERNATIONAL LIVING TECH - Contractor/850 Maestro, Reno (contractor)
CISCO AIR SYSTEMS, INC - General/214-27t, Sacramento (air compressor sales)
BUILDERS ROOFING, INC. - Contractor/ PO Box 8046, Reno (contractor)
GRADEX CONSTRUCTION - Contractor/800 Bennie Ln, Reno (contractor)

. LEVIATHAN MEDIA GROUP - Home Business/1911 Main Street, Gold Hill (publisher)

5 g ET e e

system)

SIERRA CONVEYOR COMPANY - Contractor/1225 Nichols Dr, Roseville, CA (conveyor

OHIO BLOW PIPE CO., INC. - Contractor/446 East 1t, Cleveland (install scrap removal

Motion: Approve all second readings, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen

Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

22. CORRESPONDENCE:

- Email from Bill and Linda Parson regarding their opposition of ceding 1,200 acres of Storey

County to Washoe County:

My wife and I own 10 acres adjacent to Lousetown road we purchased to build a retirement home on.
This land was purchased specifically for its rural lifestyle and low density zoning. We see the
proposed ceding of 1200 acres north of our property as detrimental to the lifestyle we desire and
destructive to the environment a large development brings. We strongly oppose this action initiated

by out of state developers who have no long term interest in our State and its residents.

Pat Whitten stressed that this does not have to do with the boundary adjustments that staff is now
working on with Washoe County, but with the “Sunny Hills” which has not yet come before this
board other than verbally. There has been one developer-sponsored event that did not go very well.

23. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident, addressed the subject of financial disclosure
statements and recommended that attorneys be consulted when completing them. He
mentioned that Chairman McBride should disclose the “McBride Family Trust Properties” in his
- statement. He has still found no record that the $282k check to pay off Piper’s Opera House was

ever used to do so.

Dale Beach, Storey County Resident, would like to see the jail fund abolished. Lot #17
Prospector Road is collecting things on his lot and it should be addressed. 446 feet of Roan Gulch
is still unpaved and needs to be addressed. He wants access to have a shooting range. Mike

Nevin has a plan for the drainage in Mark Twain.

14




24. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the call of the Chair at 1:04pm

Respectfully Submitted,

15




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 21, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Treasurer Report for December2013

2. Recommended motion: Approval of report as submitted

(WS

. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Report is attached.

Un

. Supporting materials:

=)

. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available; Fund; Comptroller

~J

. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
VS Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

/A?my Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
| S

Agenda [tem No. 7




St OEE

6CTBLET

WO §

G

SPISTSOTT § $IT0E § 5| ST969'c 5 [OEBE & | vELBE'SEL § SOESTEE 5| S0'EP9'y  § | TOOGO'E G | E6EESES & | OU'IZS'ST § | PLe2RGl S| YEZOLEZ § | OSESL66C § | 9B LLL6EL § | TWLOL ONWHD
- 5 - EX N I S - g ] : 5 IS XA
- 1510 0d
- $| - 51 - $! - sl - § - H ] - S 1510 Xd
- $| - ] - S $1 - o $ 1510 Xd
D5
TL6059vZ $ | S0 0t6P  § | ORD | 6CT6LYT § | 6698 $1 - S [8628V'BL 5 | EVZEED § | LBPEL 5 |OLB0CL 5| 06286 § | ZESST  § | CEIVLIL & | EEWLZE 5 611806 & | GOTSTCr & | EVZZET8 & | PETZ6°62 S 1 J3SNN TWLOL
SEEEBSHT S {65UT6F 5| 090 5 | bLESEWT § | CLEL $ TUBOVBE S |OL°G98y S | S0VEZ S |OBESTL G | PEOB6 S | 19°€S9 S | OERILLL & |OE99Ct § | 8vOab6 S | bAEZOGY & | POEIETS S | L0°0VI6L 1 prog/eioT
BEOTL [E TS - § | 558 LL'EL - HEER [RT54] 620 08'8T BT ST HET [REE 1LY ZT'BZT § | 6E6 525082 ¢ | HOMd TVEOL
BE'OTL HEGD S53E LLEL 9TeL s erer 6.0 08'3T § | 98¢ ST $ | E06T B 1LV Z1'82T S [ 666 S | £5082 S| ToTeieT
- ¢ - - - - $i $1 - - - HEE $ .- $1 - §] - - - $ - H Ie303qns
- ZT0F/1102
- T10Z/010Z
- 0T0Z/600T
- 600Z/800T
HOS5ASEY
blyaoesE 5| - s|eese & - $[9T609C G |OEBE  $ [OBVOG'O0T S | £L°S62'BT S 82480°L S i OEGPOLT | OVOS9'E S | OALEVZ $ | O9TGLTY G | LCOVE'LL § | S60bEAE S | STUISBBL § | LO-TERLIZ & | £9°958'66F S | SIVLOE LieOd34
- [ paindag pungay
bLIBY8SE 5| - slzese §| - | oveosz S Ovet  § | GEv0SEAT §| ELSeTEl §| STI80T SISELP0LZ  § [OTO99E 5| OLVEYZ § | 09T6LTy  $ | ZTOGTEl § | 5600E9% § | BLOISEEL § | Z0TER LI § | 29°956°66F ¢ | GFUN0as W1oL
brestese 5| - §ZEec 5| - AN YIBLT0E § | ZLSST'BT § [ BUDBOE  § | €LSBEDE S| GEWETE 5| OTUTWZ ] GOVLSIr  § | Ly BLLTL 5| S6GELOF  § | OD'ZIVIET 5| LOTERLIZ § | 95OV LET § | vr/Ex TWIOL
- N . $5855Y |e|Dads)
TPOETZSE  § T02€CT S YTBLZ90T ELSEUBT S| BY'0BO'T S [ELSBBOT 5 | 6CBEIE S| GLOZVE S| 69WVS'TH LryiT e SE'6ZI'9E & | OULTVLBT 5 | LOTEQLIZ S | 95°Z0VL6L YIOT/ET0E
007TZr9 s] - HIEE 5] - HETG I TO00T.- § | 859 R § | £8Te sloopT sl 162me gL 00'T1Z HE'EEOE 1 - REXR HOMd TLOL
9¥959E 5 00§ ST'OBE 759 5 [ v6'E HEXH 5 erer 5908 R ey 55971 T2°559 3 99FEY T £10Z/2102
VSS5LZ §] - s - HEE $ITULEL S| OFBE  $| 45902 YEVE [IE3 'z HEE] HES 510266 LE9L St £YLED s| - § [0v's96 1eigng
82T [ SOS5t 5 bT6ST 0F'£2 99T azy 5 grs 5 [ L9 B TE'81 665 £9'pLZ 5 079 ZT0Z/1T0Z
SEYERT | .5 sozaz 5 |OFHE & | ebiR ve'L 850 (3543 BER [ I3 5 | 969E 90T 9rTE $O'EST 3 L6'3VE 116Z/0T02
; HIUASYIUL
Ti0L %E WY LASUND %9 Uy SN | WeqREq Tul | BaWE/3uH vt 63 HLNOA AHLSTHOT DOV AN 3N NI 31W1S Y dv 80 HOS 40 DS Q19 LSNANL TrdINED
59T 9059£-100 | LOTPE-T00 Tho 007 0£0 L T00 (L) 58K 010 0l 090 091 0ST 005100 100
TY0Z U3AINE030 40 HINOIA SHL 157 WA v




E¥ SEF €1/LT/TT
£6°G5¢C¢ €E1/LE/2T
00 9¢ €T/LEZ/2T
05728 £T/Le/eT
Q0 ET1% €ET/LE/ET
SL°T £1/42/2T
8Z°69 €I1/€T/21
00" 01€ €EL/E€ET/ZT
06 "08% ET/E1/ET
PS5 GBS ET/ET/2T
0§ 6T EI/E€T/2T
00 %% CT/ET/21
£9° 4L £T/ET/ZT
0" LBE ET/ET/ZT
TLLLY CT/ET/2T
00°52 £T/E1/2T
. B¥1Z ET/ET/ET
00 L9Z eT/ET/2T
00'se : ET/LE/TT
66 ' T66"Z €I/LZ/TT
00" 865 ET/LE/TT
00" 96 ET/LT/TT
98°2T ET/LZ/TT
GO L¥E ET/LZ/TT
00°LSGE £T/ST/TT
00°£S2 €T/T0/1T
00°0% ET/T0/TT
00 9% €T1/81/0T
00" 0SL €E1/81/01
0T°Z1 £T1/8T/0%
6% 282 €T/¥0/0T
6T SL ET/%¥0/0T
00°0SE £1/0e/6
06°LT £1/02/6
0Z " 85¢ £1/9G/6
00" 6L £1/60/8
TS €01 £1/92/L
00" 0ST £1/82/9
00" 08T €I/%1T/9
00T00T €T/S0/¥
00 €€ EL/ST/T
ZZ LEZ €T/€0/1T
8¢ ZI/0E/1T
6576 ZT/0T/8
.00 2Z¢ TT/%0/1T
00°02 TT/1e/%
£6°08T 0T/21/¢
9% "8% 60/0Z/1T
$6°G6T 60/9T/1
£E L 80/T0/L
86°§ 80/10/L
00°62 80/6T/S
00 L¥E 80/8T/€
SE°LT LO/BT/ZT
JUNOowy 23ed o2

666666 Ubnoiyy I

€1/1€/21T - oo/o0/0
s3yoeyp buTlpurisino

DNILNNCOOY S dHINSYEIL
ALNNOD AEIQOLS

T abeg

SI¥Vd QINVY ALID TYLIAYD
DNI d¥I4 5, NoLdnd

SIMAT ILODS ‘TIHwdEnd

aQl1 LNARJOTHAHT SAY
NSEV SHAOMNHALYM NYOINAWY
ONI MDOT gNIJdTY

DNI TYOIGHW HEZ

ONI S¥N0L ALID YINIDEIA
SAS ¥HILVM SMOOYIW HAMONWEL
ONI ¥4y

R YIANYS qEodavd

a GIHEONY "INI¥NLEd
SYMAOMITHLYHT

ONI LadDy¥HaINT

i1 NddY ¥ JTAYD

AN DOSSY NOILNIATAd HAIA
ONI TYALOW SYHAOTAWE
SIMET LIO2S ‘rITaddng
FIODIN ‘S7TT1dM

TYIDNYNIA ODHVA STTIM
DONI S¥0QL ALID VINIDAIA
M ONOWAVH ‘dHJOT

ANYHS ‘NOXIA

SIMAT ILODS “TIRdEnd
SIMAT ILODS ‘TIadindg
SIMAT ILODS ‘TITHMNNG
HYH0dHI “HHAINHY

SEOEMOD ANCISHWOL HHIL
IDIYULSIA TOOBDS 0D IS
NHTHH ZYVH ‘HIDIHD
ddDHA AEN

NAYTD AIYN

ADIIATA  TIEMOG

EAYG ¥ SEYIH MO0T M R D
MDIYIVd ENEONH AATIRS
JONI aNWdAvods 1045 JLOH
NONNVD ‘' NOGIOS

k(o e}

HY¥CdId ‘¥HEaNdd
HIMYW-INNY  OHENID

¥ OIAVLDO ‘YISHHED

(D0)  ENYaoud EIVLS Ig

. SI¥0a ‘dENAVH
d1 ENYIOUd SYOTIAWY

DNI HDIAYES "IYDHET YAYAEN
Fondd  C LEYALEYIEd

UId ‘av¥dd ‘ACNGED CHEdTINd
HAYIgAd ‘HIMANT

MAVID ONTITHEN

YNILSTIHY ‘LL0d

HOI¥d ‘ddiTemiong

AAIVA I NIATEM

SNYCT FWOH JdIMAYLNAOD
DT SYENLIYd SEDH

sueN ssfoTdwm/Icpusa
WoIJg

#3051UD woxg

LZTOET

SL¥00T
9LF00T
TL9E0®
SBEZOOT
LSTCOT
S6LE0¥
0GSETOT
E68E0F
S5€6Z0F
9%6E0%
Z06E0¥
S68E0%
gvev0¥
8ZEF0¥
ESEF0T
90%c0T
LYPEROT
TL9E0F
TveEROP
VZee0T
£68E0Y
PPEFOT
6C600¥
TLOE0Y
IL9E0F
ELOEOY
6S6E0F
T06E0Y
LTLTOT
ZOEFOY
veCy0O¥
S6C¥0¥
88Z%0¥
SE00T

6LTFOY
ESLEQY
0EZP0¥
0L9GC0T
656t07
0FIF0¥
8Z6E0¥
26866

LOO0FOF
6¥6EQ0T
69ZT0T
I89t0¥
576207
6CTPEDY
B8LPTOY
S90€E0%
£S0E0%
S66C0¥
SETTI0%
6e6Z0¥

# uosisg

T oawTL unyg

00 S6T
00 96T
00 46T
00  g671
0G S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
oQ S6T
00 S6T
00 SeT
00 S6T
20 S6T
00 96T
g0 S6T
00 S6T1
C0 S6T
00 S6T
co  SeT
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 ST
00 ST
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 <6T
00 S6T
00 &6T
00 9671
00 96T
00 96T
00 S6T
00 96T
00 961
0G S6T
00 S6T
00 96T
00 S6T
00 g6%
00 S6et1
00 SeT
00 S6T
00 S6eT
00 S6T
00 SeT
00 SeT
00 SeT
00  S6T
00 SeT
00 S6T
00 s6T
00 S6T
0o S6T
00  S6T
00 SeT
bag ueg
PT/ET/TO
0L TE"

L9SLL MAD
99544 M¥p
79SLL D
8GSLL MO
599.LL  ¥MD
£5GLL MDD
059LL Mo
SPSLL MO
C¥SLL MDD
£ZTSLL  HED
DESLL MWD
STSLL D
E6FLL MWD
PEYLL D
PLYLL D
89%LL MDD
EOVLL D
S¥PPLL MD
BZ¥LL D
LTVLL D
cevLL MDD
SLell AD
§FCLL D
BZELL HD
L6TLL M)
£80LL  MD
8LOLL D
S90LL MD
6F0LL D
€L69L D
0L89L MDD
09894 MD
9glLel ¥MD
S¥99L ¥D
TO99L MDD
TEZTO9L ¥D
6ZT9L D
£T85L 4D
£99G4 D
90TSL  ¥D
STS¥L HUD
Z8EZ¥L MDD
¥90%L MO
866EL MDD
€960L MDD
LZFRS  MUD
Y1299 ¥D
gges9 MO
SE9Z9 D
56809 ND
TEBOS D
€EF09 MWD
0Z8e9 MO
BETES MDD
# yoeyp dx

209 uUny

:oN nzodoy




I9° 02T £1/21/21 BLLGYSESTH/YIIHT LS AHN 050006 00 S6T 8LE6EE ¥d
I1°62 €T/90/21 dNANE HINVHNSNI "IV.LNEJ 80TC06 0¢ S6T S96£€ dd
99 FLY 'O £T/90/21 HONTRANSNT TYINHET TOT006 0C GS6T T96EE ¥Ud
$9°8I9 9L ET/90/21 GLLS9SESTF/EILEY L5 AAN 050006 00 S61 656€E  uUd
96" 6V2 €EL/20/38 AIaod ‘RIENYId 6T6T 00 S6T 608€E dd
LS ETT €T/LE/2T ONI TYDSIOHW HAZ 0GETOT 00 S6T 0938LL D
66 °£9¢7 ET/LE/ET NIITA HASNVHIOOM 9Z0%0% 00 S6T 8G9LL MD
DS 0EY ET/LE/ET HNIHDOVMW A70M LIFEOT 00 S6T LS9LL ¥D
00668 EL/LE/ET O YOYAEN LANISEM S90%0% 00 S6T1 9S894LL M¥D
¥L'T89 T ET/LE/ET HAYD =M BSEVOT 00 S6T €G9LL MD
00" €9 €T/L2/¢T ONI SdN0L ALID VINIDUIA £68E0F 00 S6T IS9LL  AD
TO"1L9’€E €T/LE/TT ¥NId INBWdINOE J¥0DNYE Sn SE6E0F 00 GS6T 6¥9LL MO
§6°GZ €ET/LE/2T SAS VALYM SMOQVHENW SEMDONL SEEZ0T Q0 S6T L¥9LL D
00°862°¢ €ET/LZ/2T MUY QUCAAYLES 8%8Z0F% 00 S6T PHF9LL AD
80°120°2 €1/re/e1 SHTALSNUNT dIVLS ¥HATIS LBZE0T 00 <61 ZVoLL M2
00°0D0%G €T/LT/ET W NAITHLYE ‘¥HTOHS 168€0% 00 S6T T¥9LL ND
€9°TI9T1 €L/LZ/2T DNI SADIAYAS TYHOTH DES OTTTIOT 00 S6T 0%9LL  AD
ST €2€’'9 £€E/L2/eT ONI SEDTANHS TIVHOID 2dS 0T210T 0C G671 6£9LL D
05°0S86°'€ €T/LE/ET ONI SMOHSOVOY TZ9£0¥ 00 S6% FEQLL D
00°00¢€ £T/LE/2T INNGODY JAHESHH £90€0T 0C S6T £ESOLL D
S ZTT T £1/L2/21 (YD) DONI 0D NYDEOW Avd LEGEZOV 00 S6T 2EQLL NI
00°006°'T €L/LE/ET HAMOd ESYHDUNG S0E£T0T 00 S6T 0ESLL D
¥ ELY'T ET/LZ/2T ONT SHMOY AEANLIAG VPEYTIOT 00 S61 9Z9LL  MD
00" 0T €ET/Le/ET d OMEONY ‘INIELHEd SE8E0% 00 S6T SE9LL  ¥MD
68 €8¢ ET/LEJET DT DNILTIASNOD NOLION €E9TH07F 00  S6T ZZT9LL MO
00 %2 €E1/LE/ET JTT SNHOL WUYAEN P0CH0T 00 Se61 0Z9LL  MD
DL €0€ eT/LE/ET YAYAEN 40 LS-ANIZVOYW ASN gEE€COT G0  S6T 8T9LL D
00" L6 ET/LE/SET INYOLIY LDI¥ULSIA TYNCILVN 8G8E0F 00 S6T ET9LL MD
Z5 582 ET/LE/ET HIYMOUVH H#SNOHGNACK TLPOOT 00 S6T TT9LL  AD
oo"sLL'e €t/Le/et I L¥Fd0od ‘SIHICH 6E8E0Y 00 66T 0T9LL MO
SL°T9S £T/L2/2T DT LOHYIA HOUYNOW 960E0F 00 S6T 609LL D
Z0°STT €T/Le/2T INILSI¥HD ‘NNYW 09€F0¥F 00 S6T 909LL MO
ZE'TES'T €E1/LE/2T 0T SINEAT ENTd JINdIT ZOTHO¥ 00 S6T S09LL MDD
060°0S €T/Lz/2T HONI¥Ud HYHOHHAd ‘SIMAT SYZF0F 00 S6T F09LL D
9% 0¢g €1/Le/T1 NI SEDIIANHS HNIT IOVNONYT 9GEV0F 00 €61 ZO9LL D
ST 09¢ €T/LT/ET ONI dA5¥NOosdayvTy TBZVOF 00 SG6T TO0S9LL M2
00°00T €ET/LEZ/ZT EDIAYAS HANHATY TYNIHINI D0EF0F 00 S6T LESLL D
007491 ET/LZ/ET D71 ‘SHIVIDOSSY ¥ STIVONI I98E0¥ 00 96T 96SLL D
00°09C'¥% £3/LT/E1 ONI SSETHNIM SANYIHOIH S68Z0% 00 S671T €6SLL  MD
ZTEZ GLE eT/Le/eT NIZHDS AdUNHH OF0EOY 00 S6T ZESLL MWD
ST"SEZ €ET/4LZ/ET SHENIHOVH SSANISNE S, ANIVH L680O0T 0C GET T6GLL D
€67 LIT €T/LE/TT YNNOQ ‘AENOIID PSEFOF 00 S6T 68SLL D
TT 965 €T/LE/2T QL1 NYHM ¥ HTAVD ESEROT 00 S6T 88G4LL A
68 €T ET/LE/ET I SWHELSAS DNILOA NOINIWOQ SLSEOF 00 S6T PESLL D
£Z°0¢ €T/LZ/ET SETYVHD ‘ADISAD SeEH0¥ 00 S6T €8SLL MO
00°8 ET/LZ/ZT ¥ OIAVID0O ‘WISHED 8Z6E0F 00 561 Z8SLL  AD
96 %S €T/Le /2T SNOIIATOS SNd D9SH 0DLSOD 0Z000T 60 SET T8SLL D
LE F0L LT E1/LE/ZT DT NOILONALSNGD SNOOD €LLEOT 00 S6T 0BSLL MO
00 €%T EL/LZ/ZT (DA) TIDINCYHD MDOLSHWOD TG966 00 S6T 6LSLL D
8ELTI9 L £T/LE/ET DONT LEEED AIINAWWOD 55900T 00 S6T BLSLL D
05" LEE €T/LE/ET d SETIVHO ‘TITIEID0D LZBEOY 00 S6T LLSLL D
00°5% €T/L2/2T SNOIIWDINNWWOD dALIVHD 16966 C0 561 PLSLL  ND
297061 e1/Le/eT JIHSHENLIVd ODTIED BI9ZEOT 00 S6T CLSLL ¥MD
00°L8Z €ET/Le/2T SHALAOGHEET TOLIEYD 98%00T 00 961 89GLL MO
JUNOWY 21'g PIUD aweN soloTdwd/Iopuss  # uosiad bog jueg # yooup dr

£T/TE/ET - 0C/00/C woxd

666666 uybnoayl 1 #xo5yD woxg

s3yoay) Burpuwisano

ONILNOODDY Su¥HINSYENL LZIZOET @ |WUTL und  FT/ET/T0 @ 93ed Uny
z sbeg ALNNCD XEHOLS 05LT¥g :oN 3I0dsy




LE'OTL 9ET :Te10l1

LE OTL'9€E :Tel0L Mued

0T 0% 60/%T/TT HILIL NYOI¥EAWY LS¥Id £8€007T 00 S6T TTSS9 da
00" 0SS ET/0Z/21 LZZEH DOSSY ¥WHAILHOIA HHIA T05006 00 S6T SE6EE  dUd
¥L° 09§ £T/0Z/2T XYl ¥YHLAY SNI HSYM/JA0dWE LOEQDG 00 S61 ZE6EEC ¥4
BE 8¥8 0L €T/0z/2T 6LLSOSASTH/IILHY LS AHEN  0S0006 00 S6T 286€E dud
Junowy 23eJ Yosud sweN ssdiordug/Iopuss # uosasg bas jueg # yooyd dI

£T/1€/2T - 00/00/0 woid

666666 UbnoOayl I #302UuD woxg

s)oay) Butpurisang

DNIINAOIOY S dHEOSYIHL LTIZTOET ¢ SWIL uny FI/EL/T0 : 23 uny

abea ALNOGD AHIOLS DSLT¥E :ON 3x0dey




00"

00"
09

~LBTEZIL ¥99
~S8709L 192" T
967956 'LTT
-8 LT 88T
-89 98% L6 T
-ZE TEL'S

[N

~EL FOTHE
~L¥ TBZ ST
-59°TEZ 6T
00"

~LE 6657 ¥9T
-85°T9E'96
-6V LEE'SY
-96° 800 ‘TE€T
~00°ETL'S

-LZ 550 °¥9T
00°

90°
-00°000'000'T
~IZ 86L'0LT T
“ZS ETP’0C0’Z
-0ET6SLE2T
-G8 TS0 FST
~6S5'06E'SE
~Z0°TELSPT
-05°85Z 297
-06°S€E"F02
BZ 986 90T
co"

-0% IST 08T’
00"
-00'8€%'ITS
-¥% %98 'ETE’S
90" 002
0070002
007001 T

Q€ BEY
0L°%68'8L1°8
05" Z0Z ‘661 L
L9°0SL F96°S
oo"

00°

8T 8E5'TSE T
98°01T'9

00"
-06"¥Z6°T

00" 00 00" ce’ co-

op- 00" 00" Q0" oo’

00° 00" 1N 50" 00"

co” oo’ L5°99¢ 20°0T8 8T £9°T9E‘ST
oo” oo oe” 0g° oc’

60" [N . co- TE L¥6'TS 168" 69%°8
N [N ~0T €90 % 00" 9£° 852 0¢€
6o" 00" 09" 00" 00"

00" (LN 00" 00" 00"

00" 00" 00" 0g” 00"

oo* 00- 00" 00" 00"

09" 00" 00" oo 00"

00" 80" 00" [N oo*

00" 00° 09° [ 00"

0y’ 00" 00" co* LLTIES'ZT
0g* 00" 00" oc” 05°9€T
00" 00° og” co' - B3 11N ]
oo” 00" oe" 00" €8 FET'9Y
00" 00" 0o" oo’ oo

oo 00" 0L TI91°S 09°65L°8 PL ETD'S
oe" 00* [N 00" 0o

oo oo’ c0" . 00° 00"

[N [N 00" 0a-° oe”

oc” ('R -65°599°T BLUESL'TT 68 ¥ET'LE
ce" oc” 00" : 00" 00"

[N co" 00" 00" 9Z'6L8°Z0T
00" ('Y 00" ' 00" €6 ¥LT T
00" 00" 09! oo’ 00"

00° no- 007000 '82ZT 00" co"

00" 00" 00° 1N 00'006'LE
00" 00" 00° .o co-

00" 09" -LET6E6 DET 6%'6LB0ET L6 TIEZ'ST
00° 00’ 00" oo’ co-

00" LN [T ST £0°BEG 9T LS 99628
00" 00" 00" oc” oo

00" 00" [ 1vhe . oc- S6°6%9'2
00° 00" -EFT 206 L TL TE6 TSH D& 09 29T
00° 00" 00" 00* 00"

00" 00" ee’ 00" oo’

00" 00° oo" 00" e

00" 00" oo 00" au"

00" 00" 00" : 00" Co00

oo- 00" oo’ . 00" <IN

0o" 00" oc’ LEN [N

oo vo- oc” 09" 09"

ce" I 60" 00" e - 00"

oc” 0" ~9L7 7T -00"0E0'F0B  -E0°€DS5 585
[N oo’ [T R oo 00"

[N oo 00" - 00° ©00°

ce” 00" 00" 00" - 00"

HONVTYE DNIONI

T abeg

L0 SEIISHYEL  NT SHISSNYEL SUTHINOA MHNCL  STICHAYAE SINANASINGSIC

€I0Z/ZT Ho4a
LAAHS ONIONYTYH ATHLNCH
ONTINNCIOY SwdFENSYIEYL
HINOSYEANL ALNNOD XEHOLS

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

-E67LLS 1S -9 £E9 LS9
-9F0£9 €T -6E°0ET'BFT'T
~9E 6TL LE 0T 652 V6
-95 Z0BEE -85 g8T I8T
-0£° 8¢ ~RE@FR LEF T
eo” -E2E6L’S

' 00"

-G BSY¥ -ZLosrL'ee
-50°€£%9 ¥ -T¥ E€S70T
-00°'8z9 -88°£09°82
00" 00"
-S6°09Z'6L -5L70987L0T
-6ETEBL'S -60°STL 06
-$1 ggR'SY -LT 90%'8
-PE"E99 LEE -55°T8% ‘68
-00°0Z -00 E£69'8
~EL"ZIP 6T -85 €81 '¥9T
oo’ 06 °

oo 00°

o -00°000°000°'T
-6F 8FLLE -0BTEE6'TET T
-TS'06T'FT -T0°€2L'986°T
'S -95°8£9°9ZZ
~¥F EES ST -8 £5976ET
o0 -6 BEE’SE
-SLGES'TYT -LETGYT 8LT
~90° €52 '¥E -¥¥ TS 59%
0o" -D6°9EE 0T
-08° 105622 66 GTIE TTIE
00" 00"

-85 6¢%'SL ~9E TTT6TIZ'T
a0 00"
~20°060°¢ ~€6° L66 “STS
~15° P69 '€9L ~TT DER LT 8
00" 00008

o0 00°'000°C

0o 007001

00" 0EGEY

00" 0L %68 8418
00" 05" Z0Z'6ST L
$P 8EF'SOS'T T EZTL‘BEE‘P
0g- 00"

e og"

€67 LTS 6LE -EET000'LEL
[[-R 3 2 98°0L%’S

00" og-

(N -06°¥Z6'T
S1L4TEDEE TEIMADE " ive

SaNNd TIV IYi0L

ONIATOH SEXYL QIEADIS 006
ONIGTOH SEXYI GEEODASNN 008
NOISSIWWOD WSI¥GOL DA 0%f¢
IDECO¥A TIVH DA 0EZ

CNNE AT TIVL §(JATHEHS 012
SINYYD TYHEaEs S02

AIVEAYE I¥L 00Z

aNna Aavd 051

13N IHL 68T

aNNd JANCD FITLSNL LBT
INFATIOY INIOIANI 58T
18003 IDTYLEIA 09T

QuY0d NOIIVANDEY ¥ Arvd LT
FINLS OLT

ONNE EDOTONHDEL SST

LE3a TOOHDS 09T

TOOHDS 0ST

LENOD DOHA 0FT

BUMIS ECIAIG WINIDWIA OFT
ALID VINIDYIA A0 NMOL OCT
TIIE @109 J0 NMOL OTT
NOIIWZITIEVIS 0GY

WILSAS ¥ALYM 060

aNNA TAOLONELSTEANT 080
SL2ACOUd TYLIEVYD 040
NOILISINGOV LNIWEIOBZ 090
HOIA¥ES 050

QI¥ TYNLOW 5%0

IJTHLSIA TEIL 0%0
ADNADNHAWE TEId G960

TELA QL0

HCILINLLILSEE 5Z0

STYOY 0%Z0

XL~ HONYISISSY JNIOIQNI ST0
TYOIAEW INZDIANI 0T0
TYREINID 100

HOSSESSY HSYD ALLIA 506
ZITYEHS HSYD ALLIA P06
HEYD AlL3d €06

SNIOD aT0 106

INAQDDY 4197 BIVLIS 96T
LENEYW XENOW OD¥VI ST1aM T6T
INNODDY DD ODYYE STIHM 66T
SITYS AL¥H40Ed ¥ 40 € BET
SQUVYOD NNYE SSANISNG L6T
MNYE MY HSVYD S6T

ONIGTOH JHN0D IDTHISIA ¥6T
SaD> TYNOIIVR ALID €61
FONVHNSNI HITYHEH 261

NOILATHDSEd IOW

€¥ T0ET PL/ET/TO ‘uny
00TZYL ‘oN jaoday




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/21/14 Estimate of time required: 0- 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: Sec attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptrolier

7. Legal review required: None
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
x__ Departme

anty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action: :
[ Approved Approved with Modifications

] []
[] Denied [] Continued

Department Name: Community Development

Agenda [tem No., q




Storey County Community BDebelopment
Buginess )

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 88440 « (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

To:

Fr:

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office January 13, 2014
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email
Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the January 21, 2014, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:
A, CORIMA INT’L MACHINERY - Contractor / Via Medini SNC - Vigarano Pieve Italy (Ardagh Supplier)
B. BENJAMIN FRANKILIN PLUMBING - Contractor / 5401 Longley Lane ~ Reno (Contractor)
C. WILD HORSE GALLERY & GIFT ~ General / 145 South C Street (Retail) vC
D. SIERRA CONSTRUCTION & DEV — Contractor / 1215 Kleppe #9 ~ Sparks (Contractor)
E. SIEMENS METALS TECHNOLOGIES — Contractor / 501 Technology Dr ~ Canonsburg, PA (Ardagh
Supplier)
F. WESTERN INDUSTRIAL CONTRACTORS, INC. - Contractor / 14805 E Moncrieff Pl ~ Aurora, CO
(Ardagh Supplier) :
G. TRUCKEE MOUNTAIN HOME CENTER - Contractor / 11403 Brockway ~ Truckee, CA (Fireplace
Installation)
Inspection Required
ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.

Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor’s Office




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 21, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda ) Public hearing required | |

1. Title: For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 01/03/14 for $463,365.87
Accounts Payable date 01/10/14 for $679,985.32 and $4,384.87

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA _ NA  Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

QM‘W Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[ Denied

] Approved with Modifications
Continued

e —
f—

Agenda Item No. | 2_




AUYNINITIHG

-4

g

abea

L

9

S

T

HIEONSYEIL

FITTOULANOD

HANOISSTHWHOD

YINOISSIHNOD NYWNIYHD

tgdnoan roxied

PBISUCTESTUWOD JO parvog Ajune) Asxols syl Aq paacaddy

L8°'99€'€9% ipesIngsTq

Y0 16992 tX0JONP3Q 01 IIFEURLY IIEN

z6'692'2 ie1Td dag ITQ uC PSIISIEURI] SUOTIONPST ssdo1dug

LE'BTL TTIE tatsodag joaatad esdotdwy

G2 TTC'T teyosyn Iakordum

T# €€ 9LT PEN0IYD Ioampag

99 ' TE€E '¥¥ '8dld% aA03F aaFsuell Adspn
Junowy aaded # pag
/4 du

£1/62/21 i9%eQ pus-potaag T/EQ/T0 f93va Yosyd

Ie3sthey oI FTI0Z!E0 E€T/T

WHLSAS TIOHAYd ALNDOD AHYCLS Yot

TE30L

Te30L
te3oL
1¥301
12305
TE30L

Te30%

# aaq
g /42D

aenbay :adAl Troxfeg

£/21
5044




gL ZSL'8

05262

05°S0L'¥%

0V €6

92" %08

697869

0% "¥€E

L0 zog

007087

0Z°€2T

00761

00 06%'T

TYLOL
ADIHD

abeg

00"2¥
00°09
00°0€0°T
LY 9E8'E
TI8°STT
sg L
00" SZ2
L9'99
T8'6T
L0°9
LS'L
08 0LT
007095
o8t L
PR AR
00" 1LE
[A A A
| 228 44
£8°059
08°LT
EQ HES
jeh- )
G0'SLE
[
000t
60'1Z
057 LT

06'26%
05°S0L°%
0%° 26
2Z° %08
69°869
0% pEE
L0"z208
00° 08T
S£791
¥5°8¢
LETEE
LLT 8
LL"B
0% LY
00°6T

00'06%°T

LNOOWY

T8LLO
T8LLS
IBLLS
TBLLS
T8LLY
8T8LY
81BLY
T8LLS
IBLLY
T8LLD
BT8LY
BIBLY
BIBLS
BTELS
18LL
BIBLS
T8LLS
BIBLS
TBLLS
gI8LE
T8LLS
8T8L2
8T8L9Y
T8LLS
I8LL9
T8LLY
8T8L9

TSLLY
9T8LY
LLLLY
TEQLY
S508L9
2CT8LD
8PLLS
COLLS
05LLY
05LLS
05LL9
7I8LY
FPEBLYD
PIBLY
058L9

L9BLY

#SNIL

¥T/0T/T
¥L/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
FL/OT/T
FT/OT/T
$T/0T/T
FT/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
PI/0T/T
¥1/0T/1
FT/0T/1
FT/0T/T
vI/01/1
FT/0T/1
FT/0T/T
FL/0T/T
FT/0T/1
PT/0T/T
PT/0T/%
FL/OT/T
PT/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
FL/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
PL/OT/T
PT/0T/T

PT/0T/1
$I/0T/1
$I/0T/T
FT/O0T/T
PL/OT/T
¥I/0T/T
¥I/0T/T
YL/0T/T
YL/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
FT/0T/T
PT/OT/T
FT/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
¥T/0T/1

yI/0T/1

ZLYAd

FT/0T/1

£T/€/€ DO COUN TIVICHLIKW
9/¢ 4I¥YL D4 CDYN LICJUIV
£I0Z HO¥YW HOTHEIW
HONEYEANCGD OOWN SHOOW
€T/T/E IXYL COW¥N D4
ABYLS0d

SEYTD CAED

HONYIVE T4 UL H¥Id

€T0Z HOMYW TTdg 0D¥L
AT FONYIVE SINIHS
FITLSOJ

ONINIVEL OL TIAVEL
ONINIVEYL ONITIIE SWE
ONINIVEL ¥OJ THILOH
AVLSNO

AMELIVE EOVHI WYEHL ¥ 3dd
£1/21/2

SHITAANS ONILYYIIO0
Al¥vd A¥IITOH

NOILONS FTEYId0d TL-Y
ZI/L2/8 HOLIMS IdOd
FOYLS0d

IYS04510 TIO aIsSn
ZICZ/TT/TT DNINIVIL
21/82/11 WA

ET0g/LT/8 TYdAvd

NOILONS 2L¥ ¥0d AYILLYE

€ HEANOTE dih LNVId YAMES
d4/¥ WE04AINA

AO¥NANG TTIVD Y04 daMoTd
TY¥IISAHE NMOWd

dd¥iL

Z556E0T02
0EETFBT
AAANOYTI HD
KEANOYT JOHS
A¥ANOYT JCHS
AYANNYT P4 IS
A¥CNOYT ZL IS
AYCGNOYT TL LIS
SAEN SNQIHYA

LECAdNG

HQILATEDSHEC HOLOANT

BALSINFY HDAHD
ALNNOD AH¥OLS

DLW TV¥IDIEWWOD YIGWAHEEd

yoLZH# YOI¥EWY 0 NNVE
ONI DI¥LDETE NOILYHOLOY
JELIWITNA SOILETHLY

ONI ONILNEI¥NLSIA WIASY
SSHENTTEM NV HLTIYEH OdUY
PNT HWIL ETdd¥

d¥00 SNI JJIT SYLI¥ENY
47 ANVIO¥d SYDI¥ENY

"2088Y SEDANL NYOINENY

PNI O08IY

SNI HD0T ANTINY

NI SWALSAS WIVd JADNVAGY
YOANIA

¥1/80/10

ELGLL

ZLOLL
TLOLL
aLoLL
693LL
892LL
LISLL
9gaLl
S93LL

vaoLL

£99LL
Z99LL
T99LL

HIEANN
ADFHD

a3ed uny

STETEd ON Ixoday




LB L OLBLY PTAOT/T 1709 X¥lL HOTLON DIT8nd
DAY WIDIROYHD AO0LSHWOD 0694LL

L9 TBT L 00'GL8'T LBLLY FT/0T/T 1¥0ddNsS A¥WEEIT
L9 9T%’S 98LLY ?T/0T/1 LY0EENS SEILIAILOY HLAOA
ONI LSEHD ALINOWWOD 689LL
00° 0S8 00°'0S ET8LY FL/OT/T TOYINCD ISEd %L IS
TOLINOD ISHd MUYTD BBILL
ZS06T'FT Z5 06T %L 998L9 PT/OT/T XYL SETYS ALNACD IWL
UIANSYILE NOSUYD J0 ALID LBILL
T6°S0€E T6'60¢ ZGBLY ¥T/0T/1T INOHJ /O¥dIT0000-290E92ZLL
SIHSHIANINYL 021D 989LL
60°921 60°'9CT 908L9 ¥T/0T/T JEINVETID SSYID
ONI SITULSNANT TTLSYD S89LL
25°060'€ §5°22T1'1 65LLY PT/O0T/T TISHIA ¥ JYEINA -Md
L6 L9E'T 6SLLY FT/0T/T TESEIA ¥ AYATIND -Md
ONI 02 TIO XITIVA NOSYYD PEILL
ST T6 SE2 16 LPLLY  PT/OT/T SEIYYE TIHYD
00 NOIIVLINYS I¥LIdWD EBILL
62 967 867671 ESLLY PL/OT/T TALAYAY ' 5a¥0d
95°99 £SLLY $T/O0T/T SYALILE “A30LE
6L°0T £8LLY $I/O0T/T HILTIIZ ¥IV'ZEPISIOHS
86°6L £SLLY $T/0T/% UOSNAS IAFY ‘E£SESEMA
~EL 0% €GLLY PT/0T/1 YANOISNAL 2Ly HYId
~£6° 10T £6LL9 FT/0T/T FAETLA ~AD0LS8
60°0T £SLLY ¥T/0T/T MALTIA UIV £52SC Md
86°6L €SLLY ¥T/O0T/T FOSNES IAEY '€5ZS¢ M4
213 £5LLY PL/O0T/T 1IGEY) HELTId ‘89195 OS
LT €8T €5LL9 ¥T/0T/T SAETING 3 SITIE '89TIS08
66" ¢ ESLLS PT/0T/T A¥ALIYE 8919505
£6°E8 ESLLY ¥T/0T/T TI0 TLY FdId
LT 8% ESLLS  FT/OT/T dELTIIL TIO-ADOLS
097 €V ESLLS FT/0T/T AW SgEYd HYIL 8815085
68'S £5LLy FL/OT/T ¥ELIIL TI0 -ADOLS
BT 9 ESLLY vT/0T/1 1709 ®»LON TITHM "I0ESSOS
82 CE ESLLY  WI/CI/T XYL A¥Vd IHOHS-Td L¥LE
S1¥¥d OLOY RLID TYLIAYD ZBILL
05° 9% 05°9% TBLLY  PT/OT/T AIMIS ¥ SILYM
NEWEACUIWE TEYANAD NOANYD T89LL
66 BLT 66" 8LT Z18LY FT/0T/1 ASHANESIC ILNIWHSINMYD
TYNOISSIAONd #¥ SSINISNE 089LL
8095 69° 96T G0BLY ¥T/0T/1 LI EATEA
6€° 89 608LY FT/0T/T LI ¥ -€LTE
-00' 69T E08LY FL/0T/1 1IJ3¥D INAWAYS FTE00d
ONI F3Id §:NOIMNE GLILL
00492 00°8S5E S9LL9 PL/OT/T ¥T/e/T - £1/81/21
008 S9LLY FT/0T/T
SIMET LLODS ‘'TIIvENg BLILL
68" LB 68 LB TIBLY ¥T/O0T/T ASUNESIC INTHSINYEYD
ONI WAVIY OTTa¥vodnd LLILL
00°005'¥ 00°005'¥ SBLLY ¥T/0T/T FEYET
NOOTYS JO0Td J0 LIdong 9LGLL
16°€E5'¥ 16°EE5'¥ TEBLY PT/0T/T SUIVAEY AINYL ENIYY
ANI DELY SLOLL
00°0SL'€E 00°0SL'€E PELLY PT/0T/T XAOTEW IXE d00D OY AN
(LAWOD} BILNEDIN J0 quved PLOLL
00°€L9 0D0"ELY ZSLLY PT/0T/T
TELOE LNOOWY #SNYHL aLYd % o/a NOILATHISAI ADIOANI HOANHA HIFUNN
ADEHD ADTHD
$T/0T/T PIISIDAY MIIAHD ¥I/B0/T0O ¢ $32Q uny

4 abed ALNAQD AHYOLS STETEd :ON 3ioday




~66'CY £€beLo ¥T/01/1 LTAE ELTE H¥IL

£§5'9¢€ TZ8LY PT/0T/T MAZZNE ELTH
27T 490 BOLLL
00’958 00°9S F08LY F1/0T/1 SA¥VYD S8ANISNg
SNOLSSHYINTI FATLVAONNI LOLLL
00" 69¢ 00 69e £98L9 ¥T/0T/1 TIYLSNI LENHELNY #EN OLOA
ONI ANYEAVOdd 1085 IOH S0LLL
[ARE-12 2T 6L SLLLY FT/0T/T LITLPA-AOHS
DLE SANILLIA ® FSOH SOLLL
88" E9€E 86" L1E $98LS ¥I/0T/T AT - WOODYA LI
z6 5% 9LLLY ¥L/0E/T I¥d MENEYM J004-ULD 45 M1
IDIA¥ES LIAEYD LCIHAd EWOH YOLLL
0o o0E St 00°00Z°ST 88LL9 BT/OT/T
OHDS ay¥M HI¥NOL OIMOLSIH £OLLL
L9'8EW L9 BER TS8L9 ¥T/O0T/T SESSYID ALAJIYS
QLT INIVW TIDWL AMddNS aH ZOLLL
T6'L9E°T 65 TVL T9LLY PT/OT/T TASHTIQ ¥ HIY FUIL MT
50°594 TILLY PE/OT/T TI0 ¥HJISNVEL IWEH -Md
€0°'98L T9LL9 PT/0T/T TISTAT ¥ DHY TUIJ MT
T 90T B¥LLY ¥T/0T/T Z¥ECT
Ol ADYENE SYAATS TOLLL
TT'0S T 0% 858L9 $T/0T/1 VLLAYNS T WOaNwd
OIIWANID0 FOYINVAQY LSWId 0OLLL
69°905'¢€ 98°'GE£2 ¥98L9 $T/0T/T d7 DONIQTIING ONINIVAL
TO %99 958L9 $I/0T/T ANYIOdd TL IS
08°§%¢ 958L9 FL/0T/T ANYIOdd ZLT IS
99°L89 SE8LY ¥T/0T/T 08
ST°2TE 958L9 PT/OT/T FONITISIT ZL 1§
00° 08 958L9 PT/OT/T HOLYYANID ¥4 IS
02 T0% 96849  ¥T/0T/T ANYAQEd ¥L LS
09°€12 : 958L9  F¥L/OT/T ENYIOdd ZLT LS
PZ ILI 958L9  FI/OT/T EONEAISHY 24 LIS
LI S¥P 95849 PT/0T/T INYdoUd TL 1§
d7 SYDTIZEIEd 665LL
00° &S 00°5S 09LLY ¥T/0T/T AIVdEY S/M €LT~3
ONI SSYTID 1SYd 869LL
057 40T'T 00" 0LL £58L9 $T/0T/T SHOIANHESOUL ~NOFE( NCHATS
05" LEE 6S8LY FT/O0T/T LIKGEd TIING SNINIEENISONG
ONIYHINIONE ISEM ¥V LEILL
00' S22 00522 9%BLI ¥T/0T/T LY4S LETHOEN /SddEr
T TYA0Y 'NIDDNG 969LL
00'00S°LE 000054 BZBLY $T/0T/1 INANAIEDY SID T¥DIOTHEINI
00°000°0Z BZELY ¥T/0T/1 LNAWAAYOY $ID TYDOTEIINI
ALNAOD SYIDGOT S694LL
0D 6¢€ 00'6€ 628LY $T/0T/T ANOL/SEITAANS ONINVATY
ANOL 'NES50Q Y69LL
00 0EE 00 0€€ ZLLLY PT/OT/T S¥H ££ SYWLSTHHD ¥THIVL
a NIATVD 'NOTTIQ EGYLL
00°0%T 00°0%T 99LLY FT/0T/1 ¥I/2/T - EI/6T/21
¥ OIAVIO0 'YISTdD C69LL
00" ¥0T 00" 89 £08LY ¥T/0T/1 TIVD AL
0089 E08LY FT/0T/T 08 AL
0o 89 $S8LY FT/0T/T LBFYLS D § ZLe FTEWD
ONI AL ALINAWHOD MJ0LEHOD TE9LL
LE ¥BE 006291 T08LS  FL/OT/T SIWAYAWI NIVNO €T/€T/Z1
08 1L T08BLS FT/0T/1 ANLY ISIA ALdd €1/0%2/2T
TYLOL LNOOWY HSNTUL LY # 0/4 NCILATHOSEd FDIOANI JOANZA ATERAN
MDEHD AIFHD
PT/0T/T HIISIDIY ADEHD PT/80/T0 a3ed uny

€ abed ALNNOD ATHOLS STETEd ‘oN 3xodsy




00°56¢€
SLT6L8"T 0S5 "E£%T’S
SZ9EL’T
05°Z% 05'Z%
00'20% 00°20%
3o 0008
05" 21 08214
00°S¥8 T 00 TZE
00891
00 8S%'T
TZ'9EZ 191 ¥1°0¥5°09T
L0'969
0L 0LS -6E€° 16
087L0T
06" ¥8
86769
gL S8
TL BE
LY 6ES
¥FOCEY
06" %8
LO"9TT
-¥6 BBE
1% €% LT ¥
8% ¥Y
-¥e° 91
00° 008 007008
00" EBFY'F 00BVEE
00°005'71 00008 T
L6 ET L6'ET
0T'%96L°T 00°'66T
00'0€¢
00°0%€
007099
SL'LE
SETELT
00°069°2 00°069°2
90" LTS 867 LS
60" %2
65" TP
IYLOL LNNOWY
MDUHD
] abeg

85LLY

TE&LLY
T6LLY

&6¥8LY
1¥8LY
PSLLS
EEGLS

S5LLS
SSLL9
SSLLS

ZL8L9
698L9

€18L2
£318L9
£18L9
£18L9
£T8LY
£I8LS
£IBLY
LIBLYG
€T8LY
£TBLY
£T8LY

SLLLYG
1L8Le
LSLLY
FLLLS
Q6LLS
68LLS
BLLLS
ZZ8L9
2Z8L3
ZZ8L9
ZZ8LY
2TB/LY
2g8Le
028Le
£P8LY
£EP8LY
£¥8LY

HENTYL

PL/O0T/T

YL/OT/T
¥T/OT/T

PT/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
PT/0T/1T
PT/0T/T

PT/O0T/T
PEL/OT/T
PT/0T/T

FT/0T/T
PT/0T/7

PL/0T/T
FT/0T/T
PL/OT/T
PI/0L/T
¥T/0T/T
YT/OT/T
FT/0T/T
¥T/OT/T
PT/0T/1
FT/0T/7
¥1/01/1

FT/0T/1
FT/0T/T
YT/OT/T
¥I/01/%
¥T/0T/T
¥I/0T/T
FET/O0T/T
YT/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
¥T/0T/1
¥1/0T/7
$T/0T/T
PT/OT/T
PT/0T/T
PL/0T/T
FT/0T/T
¥T/0T/T

HEL¥d

# o/fd

€T02 LiNCD EDILsNL

QTIH2 T9End 910 aye
£0-28-d¥-¥TAIS

AFHOLE SIS WIVID ONININW
ALITIDYE DNIHLYY DITENd
ET0Z HINOW 40 daNJ
SINIYIYIDONII

€T0Z HLNOW J40 aNZI
£ET02 HINOW 40 IR
ETO0Z HINOW 40 (NE

XYL SNVEL ALIISOUE IVEH
Fdd 3714 HDHYL L¥N0D 018

LIdFED dH¥QD d¥Id
AHILLYE £SESTMd
AUELLVE 92€8F08
AdELLYE 8919508

AYELLYH-ZLY HUIE
AZTINd LY BUIL

9PE0TZTDO-2LY EMIX

SLT3d ¥ AZTINd -TL¥ EHIS
AYILLYE TEBTOS
SHALINYD FAVIE £0685Md
LICHED d¥00 AL

ANI CQIYd L¥OHS
dAdYd YALLOTA
TYE6006TEOED
PTENCY NOLIYWIMD INIDIANT
¥T0Z2-£T10Z IM0ddAns
FH4 LSTAEH0T
aNNAFEY 1IS0dEd
TTATHS
qdd 1d¥D
qd& IaEYD
Hdd ISYD
I¥¥E NMJ HOLIIJ
SLAVd NMO INVIINID QAOHYY
ONINIVYL
SNIVHD 415 OLOY TLY AL
HOLIMS €LTE AWIS
dHWNd 'MOTd £6LLSMA

ROIIJTHEISET EDIOANT

$I/0T/T HELSIDIA NOHEHD

ALNOOD AEAEOLS

TASNAOD FALLYVISIDAT AREN

SHOUNOSTT NYHWOE ASN
STIVUANIN 40 AIQ AIN
HILNWEH A0 AIQ ABEN
ZAITATTIY LIHT AZN

ALFAYS OITdNd Ld3d AIN

BETTOLIWCD ATN

YITIOLAWCD AAN

SI¥Yd 0LOY DN

NI SNOLLNTOS HDIAAQ OWLIW
QILINTIT ATIWYE A¥IAIYODOW
BITICYLAWCGD 02 NOAT
LIECOIVH  UTHIMOT

ANIHSNAOS ' AdCOMIIHLYIT

SNOS ¥ SIIHEND N 1

dHSITANd LIIATLIYE ¥ SENCL

HOUNHA

vi/e0/10
STETEd

PTLLL

ETLLL
CeLLL
TELLL
QTLLL

6TLLL

8TLLL

LILLL

9TLLL

STLLL
PILLL
EILLL
ETLLL

TTLLL

QTLLL

60LLL

HIFEWNN

ADFHD
T @3eg uny
toN axodsy




5

00°0¢
LT LSE

ST BT

08 2%

€%°BEL 1T

007 5L
¥Z2° 269
007 LTT
00" %S

Ly e0e

YEOBD'T

T2'6%

SLEROT

06 €% "1

P9 9ELE
£6°T9
Q009
00°S52Z
00'596¢
IYLOL
ADEHD

abeg

0002

LZ LSE
0092
g e

08 ZF
0052’1
1075062
LETES
6€'¥6
¥9° 50T
£2'16%
66" €€

TS T0g'T
69°2Z
S¥T6

19 T188'%
EYTLLL'G
85°£68'C
00°5L
2269
00" LTT
00" %5

-LZ° 081
0&6'80T
78 '¥ve
FETOBOT
81’8
0S8
€5 Zg

SL'TT®
00 ZE¥

£9°592°1
LZ QLT

p979€L'E
£€6719
00708

o0"sg

LNOOWY

vZeLe
T28LS

BOLLY
BOLLE

LT8LY

E6LLY
SL8LY
SL8LY
SL8LO
SL8LY
SLBLY
SL8LY
SLBLY
SLELY
SLELY
SL8L9
SL8LY
S4L8L9

aLBLY
CELLY
9PLLY
LOLLY
ST8LY
STBLY
steLe
g98LE
0TBLS
QT8LS
0T8LS

LEBLY
LEBLY

0gLLe
0BLLY

§498L9
£98L9
£28LY

9SLLS

#ENTIL

¥T/0T/1
$I/0T/T

PT/OT/T
FI/0T/1

¥I/01/1

PT/OT/T
¥I/O0T/T
YL/O0T/T
PT/0T/1
¥T/0T/1
PL/0T/T
¥I/0T/T
¥I/0T/T
FT/0T/T
PT/0T/T
PL/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
¥T/0T/T

¥1/80/1
¥T/O0T/T
¥T/O0T/T
¥T/0T/T
FL/0T/1
FL/OT/T
FT/0T/T
FL/0T/T
FL/O0T/T
PT/O0T/T
FI/0T/T

PT/0T/T
YT/0T/T

PI/0T/T
¥I/0T/T

PI/OT/T
¥T/0T/T
YL/0T/T

PL/OT/T

ZLYd

PT/0T/1

SQ¥vYD 510¥
YOINOWWCOD -LG98LF8SLL LODOY

¥T/2/T -~ €1/61/21

HORVTYE HYIL-€LT3

NOLI¥SNHGWOD INIDY
dHOD SATMAOM
dWOD SYHNAOM
dHNOD SUENIOM
dHOD SWTATOM
dHOD SYHAIOM
dWOD SEANIOM
dROD SEIATOM
dHOD SUIANEOM
dHOD SYINEOM
dHCD SHINHOM
dHCD SUHNHOM
dHCD SUINUOM

YOLINCH HUIE

5-98-1BIL-6TTIC
PL/2/1T - €T/6T/E1
ONTENL-IIGHND NIOLHE
ONIENL

DNIENL

FOIIAO AFATID

SNId HSnd

YIANTTYD

JTTELS

SL709 HENYO2 ? SNOPIS 4018
SHOHDNY ‘LS04 NDIS ATYD

NOISSIWNWNOD DNINNVIZ
LNIWIOTHAIT WHOD

LNYHD DHID €T0Z dIGWIAON
AELIETICO Sddd
HONYNILNIYW TYLI0d

€T0C HINCH JIC aNZ

NOILJI¥DISEC EOIOCANI

FILSIOTE MDOHHD
ALNOOD XHEQLES

NI DNIAYDSONUT NEEYD ONEY
IdAT NOILIWOAJE ¥SHIA

(¥2) DNI 0D NWDJYOW AW

W IANYS ' quoaavyd

00 ¥EEEN¥ ¥ FUIL TIEdEAd

OTLWSNAGROD ADNEDV 2JITENd
ONI SHOIART ROILDILO¥G
STEIOV YHIWT¥d

NI SHMOH RENLIA

d OTHEONVY 'INIHLAd

HIINED FOIAYHES THALS Wad

DT ‘LOdEd WIL¥d JLIBJA0

ONI JLCdEd 3DIAIQ

OTT DNILTASNOD NOLUOM

ONI VINMOAITYD 40 TELXEN
dASYE ALMNCOD TYE0E YOTAZN
ONI FOIANES TYDET YOVAHN
(ORY) QLT 3NTE YOYAIN
AMANSYIUL ATN

HOANIA

¥T/80/T0
STETE]

EVLLL
TPLLL

TR¥LLL

ovLLL

BELLL

SELLL
LELLL
SCLLL
SELLL

PELLL

TELLL

ZELLL

TELLL

0ELLL

6TLLL
BTLLL
LTLLL
92ZLLL
SeLLL
UAHHON
ADHEHD

t @jeq uny
ioN 3aoday




9

00T00T
$Z'6L9
ZZ 16%¥
0§ ¢t
Zerect
26" %S¢
L5 65376
00700475

8E QEE

60°585'¢

0076111

TYLOL
HADEHD

abed

6% "T6E
T2 %0%
¥Z'¥C
BET98L
LZ'8¢
LE'9TT
TEE¥
69°0€
PZ'¥e
167 9¥
09's5LT
[A-A%-3-1
£9°'8T
€6°851
SL'&VL
29'%CT
88 9ZT
00" Le
£9°PLE
gz 221
LE'SY
[2: 2 A-14
TETT0T
Ly 8@
§5°v¥E
96" 86
0008
2 voe
0E'S9

07001
9T 6EY
CC'16¥
[ R4
28 681
Z6 kST
LS 65976
00°00L°S

EE VP
ST 98T

8%'8
1988
00'Q0s’2

Q0 gLe
00 ELE
00" ELE

LNOOWY

¥LEBLO
FLBLY
#LBLY
FLBLO
PLBLD
wLBLY
TLBLO
YLBLY
PLELY
PLBLY
bLBLY
FLBLY
PLBLG
FLBLY
PLBLS
PLBLS
PLBLY
TLBLY
PLBLY
PLBLS
FLBLEY
PLBLEZ
PLBLS
PLBLS
YLBLY
FLBLS
PLBLEG
FLBLS
PLBLE

LEZBLS
LSBLY
GEBLS
65LLE
FELLS
ZFeLe
96LL8
S6LLS

§28LS
52849

FeLLS
ELLLS
FeLLS

0F8LS
O¥8LS
0F8LS

HENYHL

FT/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
¥T/O0T/T
FL/0T/T
F1/01/1
FT/0T/1
PT/0T/1
F1/01/1
PTAOT/T
FT/0T/1
FT/0T/1
FL/0T/1
FT/0T/T
PI/CT/T
YT/0T/T
FT/OT/T
BT/0T/1
FT/01/1
PT/0T/T
PT/CT/T
FT/0T/T
FT/0T/1
FT/0T/T
FT/0T/T
FT/0T/1
FI/CT/T
PT/OT/T
PT/CT/T
¥L/0T/T

PI/0T/T
¥T/0T/1
PI/0T/T
PI/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
FPI/0T/T
YI/0T/T
PI/O0T/T

FI/0L/1
FI/0T/1

PI/0T/T
¥L/0T/%
PI/0T/T
FT/0T/%
TI/0T/1
FT/0T/T
qL¥a

¥T/0T/T

# o/d

(ONINIVHL) I8 O N I¥T
SHEYIL 48 O N

AEEATIVE LIS NOSHYD

Q4 LINO L8 0 8

LHPIT "I /HOOQLN0 18 O 5
oa LINO I8 O S

JOHYD 18 € & %01

ILE NOLLOS

Jd¥d oA 1S d N soE

nhu 0¥ INTAVYE TYINYIS 005
dWISYD LS O § 12

LNTd dLM LE HLOOS M CO0T
HYYd SNAWATO WYS Q6%
dLDD SNEWATDO WYs Q0§
TINC  T¥e XMH 80 T1T8

08 15 2 § &0¢

05 1S D § €02

¥I 15 0 5 TI0¢

/T dOHS O '"TOL 00T

Z/T 2d7d d¥ TIOL OTT

Z2/T 9079 T¥ TIOL Ol
dOLSLEEY L8 O N TI8E
LINOD IE D N S¥T

SEY JdY¥ LHOIUMIMVYD Z135¢

¥ LS AUM NOANYD TEF
HSHIWNG LEOTIMLAYD 0152
SIHDIT Y15 HD JI0 NMOL
SLHSIT LS ALID YWINIOHIA
LHETT L§ SYANOISSIWWOD DS

SEZNA dIESYIGHIN ¥10Z
SUIVAEY ZLLlM

TIYED OIAYES

YL/2/T - £ET/6T/21
WST¥NOL/L0dEd TIIH 47109
MOTd ZTLLLSMI

INETTEY YHH0D

Iyoddns

SAI1744d0NE SWaE
SE1TIANS SWA

LSWIHE DOH
ISYIdE £1/9/21
ONIIIXUYHW TYIDOS ANV u4

INIVIH AON
INIVH DOV
INIYH TI8dY

NOILATADSId TOIOANI

AALSIOITT ADEHD
ALNNOD AHAOLS

00 ¥EMCd DIZIDYd WINFEIS
000 HEYTJATIH LNOWS WHIIIS
TYELS YENITLHOIAYd WIJHEIS

SHELSAS TOULNOD WVINEIS
NEITIV NVI¥E ’JVOHS

ONI SEOIAYWES nVHOTD 245
ELLENO0HD HARLS

VAH (I¥8EdEdd SAUVW INIVS

ONI MIINEDINY SAYYH INIVS

OHI ODgdnd

ONI ¥adyd

HOANEA

¥1/80/T0
STETEd

TSLLL
ESLLL
THLLL
TSLLL
0SLLL
BYLLL
8vLLL
LPLLL

APLLL

ShLLL

TRPLLL

HATWOR

ADIHS
ajeq uny
oy 3xodsy




Zr°oae

78659

9Z'%08

00" 005°%

PETS0Z'T

£€greg0’et

BY 8P '£82
08 04LS°T
00t
00'00T

89 98L°6

TYLOL
ADIHD

L abed

T€'68
I8 Q€T

87659

00" €9
007" SEL
00" ST
SZ°T

00°005°z

0408
S8°82
00t

Ly €6
8875971
00" ¢

004

s8"8¢
68762
6876¢
L¥ 26
80" 96
LY 26
LY 26
69766
69766
LY Z6
L¥ 26

05°002°T
€L EEBOT

BV %87’ €8T
08 DLS'T
00" TZ

00" 00T

LA -1
9g' 5¢
§9° %<
SO'65E
06'TIZ
T0 YL
8L £95
¥ SLT
&L°09T
(A2 A
9T 'Té
LD 198
60564

LNOCKHY

b8l
S¥8L9

oogLe

QLLLY
QLLLY
OLLLY
0LLLe

66LLY

EILLY
L¥8LY
L¥8LY
Ly8LY
LwgLS
LP8LS
LveLe
L¥8LY
LPBLS
L¥BLS
LP8LS
LPBLY
L¥8LY
L¥8LY
LPBLY
L¥eLI
EILLS
L¥BLO

9EBLY
BELLY

098L9
¥veLY
zogLe
£BLLY

FLBLY
¥LBLD
TLBLY
YLBLD
¥LBLY
wLBLY
PLBLY
PLBLY
PLBLYS
FLBLE
PLBLY
PLBLE
PLBLY

#ONTEL

FL/0T/T
¥T/0T/T

PT/0T/T

PT/0T/T
BT/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
PT/0T/T

YL/0T/T

¥T/0T/T
FI/0T/T
PT/0T/T
VI/OT/T
¥T/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
PL/0T/T
¥L/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
YI/0T/T
FT/0T/T
PT/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
FL/O0T/T

FL/0T/T
$T/0T/T

PT/OT/T
¥T/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
PL/0T/1

¥T/0T/1
FT/0T/1
¥T/0T/1
F1/01/1
¥T/0T/1
FT/0T/1
FL/0T/
¥T/0T/1
FT/0T/T
FT/0T/T
FT/0T/1
PI/0T/T
¥T/0T/1

aL¥a

YT/0T/T

TdI- N¥EE S0LT
S5/M- QYIS SOLT

ONITTIIE FONYNILMIVA

YI/2/T - E€ET/6T/ET

PIOE-LTOT ISVAT YIMOL

LOdEd TTIH dTod

WSTANCL DA

STYEN
LdCddns

QIATIOTE XYL ALYEACHd
LEOAANE BOLYHEJC
SOEYD SSHNIZN

Qg

ASHI¥YIA LHOIEMLEYD 0192
A¥YS ¥ HONWE I¥HEd 000T
YL HOA (Y FYIdWE TP1E
¥ LINN AM NOANYD 0C¥

g LIND A¥M NOANYD OZ¥
LS D N §8T

¥4 N¥EAd SCLT

J¥ HONWY I¥dd 0GB

SLEOIT L& D § 1ES
SLHDIT 41§ O 8 ¥t
SILEDIT &8 O N SLT
NOANYD HTIW XIS 0TEZET
ASOCHIMNOD IS € § 22

NCILAIUDSETI FOIO0ANT

HJILTIDEY ADIHD
ALNOOD ATYOLS

SAS YELVYM SMCOAYEW HIMINYL

INEWIAQUAWI TYHENED IHL

YOLVAHTE dNEANESSAHL

SEGTYINALNG A¥Ed NOS

5504 dEAL ALNNOD AEACLS

WALGAS YHL¥M 0D LS

(DA) GHINAS JOINES 0D IS
LOTHLEIA TOOHDS 00 LE
ONI SHOIANES XLITILG €48
¥aq D77 SIIYISAINI ADITE

ONI TIQEINOD LS3d VHdIIS

HOANEA

¥T/80/10
sietEd

SOLLL

¥oLLL

TOLLL

COLLL

TOLLL

D9LLL

6SLLL
BSLLL
LSLLL
98LLL

SSLLL

JqIGNON

AIIHD
a3eg unyg
oN 3zodsy




El

ZE S8676LY

00 95%

00°00T'E
00 ZTPT'L

007095

12 028°eT

58'1%1

I¥LOL
ADIRD

abedq

AVLOL SADHHS

00°0Se
go0"s0g

00'00T'2
00" ZHL’L
00" %9

o0 ge¥
go'e
127029 'ET
675t
Se'0¢

96 fL

LNIIOWY

ebaLY
8¥8L9

BEBLY
g08BLY
TLLLS
TLLLe
TLLLS
0EBLS
ZEBLS
ZEBLS
ZEBLS

HSNTAL

PL/OT/T
YL/OT/T

FT/0T/1
PI/01/1
FT/0T/1
YI/0T/T
PT/0T/T
¥L/0T/T
FT/0T/T
PT/0T/T
¥I/0T/T

2R e

¥1/01/1

YCTIYH
OULIN'HE ""I¥DEL '0TH OId

ANYL OLLJES 0009 dEdWNd

SATYENOD/1IN¥d /HI0NATAS

»1/2/1 - €1/61/21
IWd QESSIW €102 X1Ine
YIIYM ¥L 1S

qAIYM TL 1S

dILYM 2L IS

NOILEIY¥YOSEd ADIOANIT

YHLSIDEE ADHHO
AGNOOD ATUOLS

9] TYINERNOYTANH NYILSEM
¥ad AT NNWI 2IL4ES SUILYM

YIANOUOQD Q2 JOHSWYM

ONI SWOOGL ALID VINIDYIA

LNEWGOTEARD TWANY WaAsSn

YOANaA

¥T/80/T0
STETES

QLLLL
G9LLL

BILLL

LOLLL

I9LLL

HADHOAN

ADFHD
T @3wq uny
"02uhommm




1

LB PBE'V

L8 ¥8E’Y

TYLOL
4E=\-40]

abeg

66766
667602
05'66T
86 LY
6% 2IL
0S8 T¥%
00059
S6°EY
0088
007621
Qe Qs
85°¢
0966
00'02T
8T°5¥%
ZL'SL
5%° 8§
00°59
007 00T
68°0¥%
£LTEER'T
(404

LNOOKWY

aL¥d

YENCISSIWWCD

NOIIYZIYOHLAY TNV MIIATY 20 INAWIHAHTMONIDY

sS
Qs
S5
S5
S5
Ts
LS
£s
[43
4%
98
L)
A%)
€9
£9
i3]
T8
Ts
is
is
28
i43)

FENTIAL

FL/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
FT/OT/T
FT/0T/T
¥T/0T/1
PT/01/1
FT/0T/T
PI/CT/T
FI/CT/T
FL/0T/T
PT/0T/%
PI/0T/T
PL/0T/T
YI/O0T/T
PE/OT/T
PT/0T/T
PT/0T/1
$I/0T/1
$I/0T/T
¥T/0T/T
PT/0T/T
¥T/O0T/T

EL¥d

HILNI¥d OWAC HONH

LI JIVHD

A¥ELLYE AT LI

YIDUVHO CQ¥aAdI

LI SIVH DTLIVLS

HHHEIMOT HHLNAD HOINIS
OLNDIHNHH ¥VH NYDIHIWY
¥ILTIL TI0 T00L ¥IV
NYWAVHIL / ¥Idd
NVWAYHDL / WIIW

SHUOD JIM8XH

AL¥Vd ¥0d dOT

LXEL TYATIULEY QNI
qQUD WYXH-YETIIH FAVYIE
< UWMM JOOJ-UIND ¥US M1
£r/ee/et

€T-0€-2T

SYIAMOTL ATONNY

qd HONHIOANCD dSNIUINT
dH33400 HOIZEC WWOD
IYAZTHULIAY QENT

FOIZI0 2400 -TIVH

NOLLdI¥ISHA

FALSTOHEE CQUYD dSYHIUNG

ALNNOD AHHOLS

ENVYEd-CTI¥LY
ENYIA-CTT?LY
ANYEA-S0PPLE-0SE
ANVHCG-0LPB60O
ANVIC-218-0

LNIOd MMOYD NHILLIHM
ONINIVEL

DIEYS HOHUVH-YLLAUAS
QIHOVYSHIHIA# TN
YIDELITWVHDA# JdYU
HOd ¥ENIEIM aNOWIHY
NOIIWVLS oA dINOWaEY
85E69VLEH HITUO

YHNY AN-TYD-NIAENW
SId¥E HONVITAdV-ML
SYD 4018 MINTD NYWIIO
V0 ANTTIOD NYWIIO
LANVL TYdOTd On NIWA
THIOTE Dp NIVE

FII00 NIW NAFZIO NIVd
TLSDBEZEEEH INOD

84S0 -NIAAN'D
LNAWAYA

»TEIOL PILD«

# EOIOANI JLJAC-ONAd

QUYD TYIDIIHHOD ENO STTIEM 6

UOGNIA HATWON
od
YI/80/10 @ @33eq uny

I808¥SHd :ON 3r0day



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date:January 21, 2014 Estimate of time required:

15 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Authorize the District Attorney and County Manager to purchase property located at 62;
70; 74 and 82 South B Street in Virginia City for an amount not to exceed $262,500 plus closing
escrow and title costs. Once property is acquired, existing residential units will hopefully be
relocated within the Comstock Historic District and the target parcels will be developed for
additional off-street parking,

2. Recommended motion: Move to approve purchase of property located at 62: 70; 74 and 82
South B Streets in the amount and terms specified in the Agenda Action Report and
discussed today.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioners Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: See page 2

5. Supporting materials: 1. Property Appraisal
2. Email of proposed terms and conditions
3. Allocation letter from John Bullis - CPA

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Yes Fund: Capital Projects or /ﬁ Comptroiler
Infrastructure

7. Legal review required:
istrict Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

O\Mmty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

/e
ST

Agenda Ttem No. | 5




Staff summary: If there is one thing Virginia City may never have enough of, it’s convenient
off-street parking. Fortunately, the respective owners of the four homes located immediately
south of our Courthouse are interested in selling. Acquiring this property would not only provide
parking near the tourism core, but would also greatly add availability for the Courthouse and
Piper’s Opera House events. The County has obtained an appraisal from an independent
appraiser in the amount of $262,500.00. Please note, the appraiser has determined this value is
based solely on the subject property’s potential use as providing off-street parking. While the
appraisal has two different valuations, the County has elected to base our offer on the lower
amount of $262,500 as it more accurately reflects the reasonable number of spaces that can be
gained on the actual parcels being considered. If approved, it most likely will be the County’s
intent to dispose of thru sale, the existing residential units and it should be disclosed that there
are a number of challenges impacting potential sale including asbestos abatement and
compliance with Comstock Historic District’s requirement that all four residential units need to
remain located within the District. Regardless, those matters can and should be addressed after
we acquire the property and accordingly, staff is recommending purchase at the value established
by the appraiser, subject to the following terms and conditions:

Clear property title to be conveyed on both parcels.

Total Net Proceeds to Ron Gallagher in the amount of $210,000

$210,000 to be paid in two equal principle installments of $105,000; one being due on
close of escrow (COE) and a second equal payment, together with interest accrued on
January 12, 2015. A promissory note secured by deed of trust shall be drawn at a fixed
rate equal to what Wells Fargo Bank locally quotes as their 15 year single family
residential rate with no points and no prepayment penalty.

Total Net Proceeds to Bill Clark in the amount of $52,500 payable in full at COE.

Storey County will pay 100% of escrow and title insurance costs,

Close of escrow shall occur on Bill Clark’s property upon notification his tenant(s)
have vacated all properties. :

Close of escrow shall occur on Ron Gallagher’s property upon notification that all
tenants have vacated.

As the County is buying the property for future utilization as a parking facility, Store
County will agree to allocate 100% of the purchase price to land. '

During removal of the structures and grading, Storey County will agree to donate any
historic artifacts discovered to a Storey County based museum and if none are interested,
will donate the proceeds of sale distributed equally between the Historic Fourth Ward
School, the Saint Mary’s Art Center, the Liberty Engine/Firemen’s Museum and the
Cemetery Foundation.

Should an organized archeological exploration occur, Storey County will process
discovered artifacts in the same manner outlined above.

We do not anticipate close of escrow until on or about April 1, 2014. At that time, funding will
be available from either the Infrastructure Fund (subject to your subsequent approval) and/or the
Capital Projects Fund utilizing augmented revenues from higher than anticipated ending fund
balances as a result of our FYE 2013 audit.




ANN DELAHAY, APPRAISER

2898 Rio Vista Court® MINDEN, NEVADA 89423
Phone: (775} 267-9675  Fax: (773) 267-9675

November 23, 2013

Mr. Pat Whitten, County Manager
Storey County

P O Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

Re: Appraisal of a 14,706-square-foot site comprising two parcels situated at the northwest corner of
Taylor and B Streets in Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada

Dear Mr. Whitten:

As you requested, | have completed an inspection and analysis of the above-referenced property in order to
derive an opinion of its Market Value, as is. The function of the appraisal is to assist the client, Storey County,
in making a decision regarding the possible purchase of the subject property for a future parking facility.

This is a Restricted Appraisal Report. As such, it does not present discussions of the data, reasoning, and
analyses that were used in the appraisal process to develop the appraiser’s opinion of value. Supporting
documentation concerning the data, reasoning, and analyses is retained in the appraiser's file. The depth of
discussion cortained in this report is specific to the needs of the client and for the intended use stated above.
The client is Story County. It is assumed that this appraisal will also be shared with the property owners, Mr.
Ronald W. Gallagher (Parcel 01-081-06) and Marianne and William Clarke Jr {Parcel 01-081 -07). The
appraiser is not responsible for unauthorized use of this report.

After considering all the factors and information contained in this report, and based on the hypothetical
conditions as stated in the report, it is my opinion that the Market Value of the fee simple interest in the
subject, as of August 5, 2013, was:

Scenario A, 30 Spaces:




Scenarig B, 40 Spaces:

Respectfully submitted,

. et

Ann Delahay
Certified General Appraiser
Nevada License # A-0002515.CG




Ann Delahay, Appraiser

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SUMMARY OF IMPORTANT FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS. . ... ... e 1
PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION. . ... e e e 2
APPRAISAL ISSUES. . . ... 2
PURPOSE AND INTENDED USE OF THEAPPRAISAL. . ... ......... .o, 2
DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE. . . . .. ... .. . i e 2
PROPERTY RIGHTS APPRAISED. ... ... .. . i e 2
EFFECTIVE DATE OF VALUATION. ... ... .. . i, 2
SCOPE OF THE APPRAISAL.. . ... .. i 3
VAL AT ON. . L 3
INCOME APPROACH. . . ... e i 3
FINAL CONCLUSION OF VALUE. . ... ... e 4
CERTIF AT ON. L. e e e e 5
STATEMENT OF LIMITING CONDITIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS. . .. ..ot 6
ADDENDUM

QUALIFICATIONS OF APPRAISER
SUBJECT PLAT MAP
PROSPECTIVE PARKING MAP




Ann Delahay, Appraiser

SUMMARY OF IMPORTANT FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS

PROPERTY APPRAISED

LOCATION

APPRAISAL DATE

INTEREST APPRAISED

PURPOSE OF APPRAISAL

INTENDED USE OF APPRAISAL

OWNER OF RECORD

HIGHEST AND BEST USE AS VACANT

EXPOSURE/MARKETING TIME

VALUE CONCLUSION

SCENARIO A, 30 SPACES:

SCENARIO B, 48 SPACES:

A 14,420 square-foot site comprised of two parcels: Asssessor's
Parcels 01-081-06 and 01-081-07, as if vacant

Northwest corner of Taylor and B Streets, also known as 62, 70,
74, and 82 South B Sireet, Storey County, Nevada

August 5, 2013
Fee Simple

To form an opinion of the Market Value of the property, as if
vacant

For use in internal decision-making regarding the possible
purchase of the subject property by the client

Parcel 01-081-06: Ronald W. Gallagher
Parcel 01-081-07: Wm Jr. And Marianne Clarke

Parking or future office use

Six months to one year

$262,500

$350,000




Ann Delahay, Appraiser

PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION

Address and Location: The property is located at 62, 70, 74, and 82 South B Street, at the northwest corner of
Taylor and B Streets in Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada. It is identified by the Storey County Assessor as
Assessor's Parcels Numbers 01-081-06 and 01-081-07.

Owner of Record: Parcel 01-086-06 is under the ownership of Ronald W Gallagher. And Parcel 01-086-07 is under
the ownership of Wm Clarke Jr and Marianne Clarke. Neither parcel has sold within the last five years.

APPRAISAL ISSUES

PURPOSE AND INTENDED USE OF THE APPRAISAL

The purpose of this appraisal is to form an opinion of the Market Vaiue of the fee simple interest in the subject
property, as if vacant and used for public parking. The intended use of the appraisal is o assist the client in making
a decision regarding the possibie purchase of the subject property.

DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE

Market Value is defined as the most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open market
under alf conditions requisite o a fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently, knowledgeably, and assuming
the price is not affected by undue stimulus. Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified
date and the passing of title frorn seller to buyer under conditions whereby:

buyer and seller are typically mofivated;

both parties are well informed or well advised, and acling in what they consider their own best interests;

@ reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market;

payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial arrangements comparable thereto;
and

5. the price represents the normal consideration for the property sold, unaifected by special or creative finan-
cing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale.”

Ao N~

PROPERTY RIGHTS APPRAISED
The property rights appraised in this report are the fee simple estate in the subject, assuming no indebtedness
against the property.

EFFECTIVE DATE OF VALUATION
The effective date of this appraisal is August 6, 2013, the date of inspection. The report date is November 25, 2013,
the date indicated on the cover letter.

LFIRREA Title XI, OTC Regulation 12 CFR 564.2(f)




Ann Delahay, Appraiser

SCOPE OF THE APPRAISAL

In deriving an opinion of the value, by prior agreement with the client, the appraiser the appraiser has researched
parking rates and income from public parking lots in Virginia City in order to derive an estimate of income that could
be generated by the subject property, based on a hypothetical condition that existing improvements have been
removed and the property is graded and paved for parking. It is beyond the scope of this analysis to estimate the
cost of removing the four house that currently occupy the site, or the cost of grading and paving the subject land.
The appraisal is limited in scope in that only use as a parking lot has been considered. It is understood that the
appraiser has previously appraised this property as currently improved, and has also appraised the property as vacant
land. This valuation is limited to a valuation based on projected netincome as a parking facility. Annualincome was
estimated, and capitalization rates were researched in arder to derive a value as a parking lot.

The valuation is based in part on a site map by John MacDonald of Farr West Engineering, which indicates that
approximately 40 parking spaces can be developed on the subject property. | note that this map includes the
adjacent property to the west. My study of this map and the Storey County Assessor's Parcel Map indicates that
approximately ten of the parking spaces which can be developed on the subject property are at that back of Parcel
01-081-06 and cannot be accessed except through the adjacent property to the west. Also, the severe slope at the
back of the subject parcels will necessitate grading and terracing of the property, as well as the construction of
retaining walls. I have valued the subject both considering only the spaces that could be developed on the relatively
level portion of the subject site without the acquisition of additional land, and considering the possible additional
spaces that can be developed on the subject land were it to be assembled with the adjacent parcels and terraced
such that there is access to the parking spaces and the parking area is relatively level.

This is a Restricted Appraisal Report that is intended to comply with the reporting requirements set forth under
Standards Rule 2-2(c) of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) for a Restricted
Appraisal Report. As such, it does not include discussions of the data, reasoning, and analyses that were used
in the appraisal process to develop the appraiser's opinion of value. Supporting documentation concerning the data,
reasoning, and analyses is retained in the appraiser's file. The information contained in this report is specific to the
needs of the client and for the intended use stated in this report. The appraiser is not responsible for unauthorized
use of this report. To the best of my knowledge, this appraisal conforms to the requirements of USPAP, 12 CFR Par
34 (FIRREA), and the State of Nevada.

VALUATION

Normally, an appraiser has three methods of forming an opinion of the value of a property. These are known as the
Cost Approach, the Sales Comparison Approach, and the Income Approach. Only the Income Approach will be used
for this appraisal.

INCOME APPROACH

The appraiser has gathered information on three parking lots currently generating income in Virginia City. One of
these lots is leased to Storey County for open parking. The other two are used for public parking and are rented to
the public on an hourly or daily basis. My research indicates netincome for parking in Virginia City which ranges from
$666.67 per space per year for the Iot on B Street between the subject and the Storey County Court House to $2,190

3




Ann Delahay, Appraiser

per space per year for one lot on C Street and $3,600 per space per year for a prime lot on C Street. The C Street
locations would be expected to have significantly higher income than a B Street location; however, the B Street
location reflects a leased lot rather than income that could be achieved from daily public parking. Given the location
of the subject, | have estimated that annua! income per space would be slightly higher than that achieved by the B
Street lot, but significantly lower than the income achieved for the C Street lots. Given this, | have projected annual
net income to be $700 per space, or $21,000 for 30 spaces and $28,000 for 40 spaces.

There is little local data on current capitalization rates, and no information on capitalization rates for parking lots was
found. Based on discussions with area brokers and on national surveys such as the Price-Waterhouse Coopers
report for the Second Quarter, 2013 and a study of capitalization rates for major U.S. cities by CBRE, | have used
an overall capitalization rate of 8%. This results in a value indication of $262,500 for 30 spaces and $350,000 for 40
spaces.

FINAL CONCLUSION OF VALUE

The value of the subject has been estimated based on each of two hypothetical conditions:

Scenario A Existing improvements are removed and the site graded and paved for | $262,500
parking for 30 vehicles

Scenario B Existing improvements are removed, the site is assembled with the $350,000
adjacent parcel to the west, and the entire site is graded, terraced, and
paved, with parking for 40 vehicles being created on the subject portion
of the assembled site

After considering all the factors and information contained in this report, and based on the hypothetical conditions
as stated above, itis my opinion that the Market Value of the fee simple interest in the subject, as of August 5, 2013,
was:

30 Spaces:

40 Spaces:




Ann Delahay, Appraiser

CERTIFICATION

The Appraiser certifies and agrees that:
1. The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

2. The reported analysis, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the assumptions and limiting conditions set forth herein,
and are my personal, impartial, and unbiased professional analysis, opinions, and conclusions.

3. I'have no present or prospective future interest in the real estate that is the subject of this appraisal report. | have no present
or prospective personal interest or bias with respect to the participants in the transaction. | did not base, either partially or
completely, my analysis and/or the estimate of Market Value in the appraisal report on the race, colar, religion, gender, handicap,
familial status, or national origin of either the owners, prospective owners, or occupants of the subject property or the present
or prospective owners or occupants of the properties in the vicinity of the subject property.

4. 1 have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties invelved with this assignment.

5. My compensation or future employment contingent upon the appraised value of the subject property. | was not required to
report a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client or any related party, nor are a predetermined
value estimate, the attainment of a specific result, or the accurrence of a subsequent event required in order to receive my
compensation andfor employment for performing the appraisal. | did not base the appraisal report on a requested minimum
valuation, a specific valuation, or the need to approve a specific mortgage loan. My engagement in this assignment was not
contingent upon developing or reporting predetermined results.

6. My analysis, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this appraisal report has been prepared in conformance with
and is subject to the requirements of the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) adopted by the
Appraisal Foundation.

7. | have personally inspected the interior and exterior areas of the subject property and the exterior of all properties listed as
comparables in this report, unless otherwise indicated. | have noted any apparent or known adverse conditions in the subject
improvements, on the subject site, or on any site within the immediate vicinity of the subject property of which | am aware.

8. | have researched the subject market area and have selected the most recent sales of properties | consider to be most similar
and proximate to the subject property for consideration in the Sales Comparison analysis and have made adjustments to these
sales for comparison to the subject property. | have taken into consideration the factors that have an impact on value in deriving
my estimate of Market Value. | have not knowingly withheld any significant information from the appraisal report and | befieve,
to the best of my knowledge, that all statements and information in the appraisal report are true and correct. Where possible,
| have verified data regarding sales and lease comparables used in this report with a party to the transaction.

8. No one provided significant professional assistance to the appraiser signing this report.

Ann Delahay
Certified General Appraiser
A.0002515-CG




Ann Delahay, Appralser

STATEMENT OF LIMITING CONDITIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS

This appraisal report and the valuation reported herein are made subject to the following assumptions and limiting conditions.
1. | assume that the title is good and marketable and, therefore, will not render any opinions about the title.

2. No survey has been made for the purpose of this report. All maps and sketches in the report are made for ifustrative purposes and are
submitted to assist the reader in visualizing the property. Although | have attempted to be as accurale as possible, maps and skefches are not
guaranieed fo be exact.

3. Data for this report was provided by the client and by informed local and governmentat sources and checked where possible by secondary
sources and is believed to be reliable; however, the accuracy of this information is not guaranteed.

4. This appraisal is to be considered in its entirety. The allocation of value between land and improvements, if any, is based upcn the highest
and best use of the land as herein staled, and cannot be applied to any other use.

5. Neither all, nor any part of the contents of this report or copy thereof shall be used for any purpose by any but the client without the previous
written consent of the appraiser and/or client. The appraiser's written consent and approval must also be obtained befare the appraisal or any
part of the appraisal (including conclusions about the praperty value, the identity of the appraiser ar a firm with which the appraiser is connected)
may be conveyed by anyone to the public through advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media. | will not disclose the contents of
the appraisal report except as provided for in the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice,

6. Itis assumed that the property wili be under responsible ownership and competent management and that reasonable maintenance will prevail.

7. 1assume that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property, subsoil, or structures which would render it more or less valuable.
I assume no responsibility for such conditions or far engineering which might be required to discover such factors. The existence of hazardous
material which may or may not be present on the property, was not observed by me, and | have no knowledge of the existence of such materials
on the property, unless noted. The presence of substances such as asbestos, urea-formaldehyde foam insulation, or other potentially hazardous
materials may affect the value of the property. The value estimate is predicated on the assumption that there is no such material on orin the
property that wouid cause a loss in value. No responsibiiity is assumed for any such conditions, or for any expertise or engineeting knowledge
required fo discover them. The client is urged to retain an expert in this field, if desired.

8. 1am not required to give testimony or appear in court as  result of having made this appraisal, unless specific arrangements to do so have
been made beforehand.

8. The value assumes all governmental approvals and completion per plans and specifications submitted of the off-site and building
improvements, if applicable. If the appraisal is made subject to completion, repairs, or alterations, it is assumed that such completion, repairs,
or alterations will be performed in 2 workmaniike manner.

10. The opinions of value contained herein are estimates. There is no guarantee, written or implied, that the subject property will actually seli
for such amounts.

11. The subject building may or may not appear to be equipped to service handicapped clienis; however, | make no representations as to
whether they are in compliance with ADA regulations. ADA regulations are complex and the appraiser is not qualified to determmine whether or
not the subject is in compliance. The client is urged to refer to proper authorities, if desired.




ADDENDUM




AINNOD  ATHOLS

SprepBng YRASSSY J0 UDISIALC] Befrere], jo 103y o) 44 poseadds srapm
u9pgIua) 8] sysodmd jesmarasen wey samma 105 E1E SR 10 80, weRtan
FRICUTRP Tk w40 Arrmoos 3t o) 5e pRRMSSE §) ARIGEN o Fams
TSR 0 S0P PUT A{T0 DI USSR 10 51 10]d S IEION

S0-POTT S por1iond

£119 DA

$X Ay

REELIRS

Subject Parcel Map

@

TP B
L ol __m__ﬂ wil oy __Lm_
spig 80) Rol e @@v_.

TIETIT
s

.T@,.ﬁ ok | || o
T B R i P 298] e L] e il

A33ULS , d)

Ann Delahay, Appraiser

THT W3

WREAW "3I2H N
82 W8 TAN dod




Ann Deilahay, Appraiser

Prospective Parking Map




|
|

QUALIFICATIONS OF ANN DELAHAY
Real Estate Appraiser/Consuitant

2898 Rio Vista Court, Minden, NV 89423
(775) 267-9675 FAX 267-9675

Nevada Certified General Appraiser License #A.0002515-CG

Background and Experience

Review Appraiser, Nevada Department of Transportation Oct 2008 - Present
Independent Fee Appraiser Jan 1997 - Oct 2008
Associate Appraiser, The Aspen Appraisal Group, Aspen, CO May 1994 - Nov 1996
Senior Appraiser, Price Appraisal Services, Dallas, Texas Nov 1987 - April 1994
Staff Appraiser, Cornwell & Associates, Dallas, Texas Jan 1987 - Nov 1987
Manager of Property Accounting, Levin Management, Dallas, Texas April 1884 - Jan 1987
Assistant Manager, Property Accounting, Cushman & Wakefield, Dallas, Texas July 1980 - April 1984

Education and Technical Training

Trinity University, B.A., Magna Cum Laude 1974

American Instituie of Real Estate Appraisers:
Real Estate Appraisal Principles (2/87) Basic Valuation Procedures (6/87)
Capitalization Theory & Techniques A & B (6/87) Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice {5/88)
Case Siudies in Real Estate Valuation (4/89) Appraisal Report Writing (7/90)

Appraisal Institute:
The High Tech Appraisal Office (7/97) Standards of Professional Practice (10/97)
Appraising High Value and Historic Homes (12/88)  Appraisers as Financial Institutions (10/01)
Water Rights in Nevada (11/01) Nevada Statues (2/03)
Guide to Uniform Residential App {9/05) Highest & Best Use (40hr - 10/06
USPAP Update (11/08) Analyzing Operating Expenses (1/09)
Forecasting Revenue {1/08) Eminent Domain & Condemnation (1/03)
Analyzing Distressed Real Estate {1/09) USPAP Update {3/10)
Evaluating Commercial Construction (10/10) Corridor Valuation (10/10)

Yellow Book |ssues/Divided Partial interests (10/10)

The Beckman Company:
The Technical Inspection of Real Estate

The Chicopee Group
Professionat and Technical Compliance Compliance with USPAP Parts |, 11, & lil (2/99)
Professional & Technical Compliance with USPAP | (5/02)

Reno/Sparks Association of Realtors
Property Flipping and Predatory Lending (10/01)

McKissock, Inc.

Appraising the Oddball: Nonconforming Appraising for the Secondary Market: Getting
& Difficult Properties (10/02) Along With Fannie & Freddie (10/04)

USPAP Update Equivalent (10/04) Appraisal Review (10/04)

Appraising High-Value Residential Properties (10/04) Fair Housing - Virtual Classroom {1/05)

Appraising Historic Properties (1/07) Construction Details & Trends {1/07)

Disclosures & Disclaimers {1/07)

National Association of Independent Fee Appraisers
USPAP {2/05)

10




Pat Whitten
m

From: Pat Whitten

Sent: Wednesday, January 08, 2014 3:20 PM

To: Ron Gallagher (ronandjudygvc@att.net)

Cc: Marshalf McBride; Bill Maddox; Austin Osborne

Subject: B Street Property Purchases

Attachments: Gallagher Clark Properties.pdf

Ron,

As we discussed Monday afternoon, Storey County is interested in purchasing the residential homes owned by you and

Bill Clark located at 62; 70; 74 and 82 South B Street in Virginia City. Purchase would potentlal!y be subject to the
following terms and conditions:

Approval of the Storey County Board of Commissioners

Clear property title to be conveyed on both parcels.

Total Net Proceeds to Ron Gallagher in the amount of $210,000

$210,000 to be paid in two equal principle installments of $105,000; one being due on close of escrow {COE) and
a second equal payment, together with interest accrued on January 12, 2015. A promissory note secured by
deed of trust shall be drawn at a rate equal to what Wells Fargo Bank quotes as their 15 year single family
residential rate with no points and no prepayment penalty.

Total Net Proceeds to Bill Clark in the amount of $52,500 payable in full at COE.

Storey County will pay 100% of escrow and title insurance costs.

Close of escrow shail occur on Bill’s property upon notification his tenant{s) have vacated.

Close of escrow shall occur on your pfoperty upon notification that all tenants have vacated.

As the County is buying the property for future utilization as a parking facility, Storey County will agree to
allocate 100% of the purchase price to land as requested by your accountant.

During removal of the structures and grading, Storey County will agree to donate any historic artifacts
discovered to a Storey County based museum and if none are interested, will donate the proceeds of sale
distributed equally between the Historic Fourth Ward School, the Saint Mary’s Art Center, the Liberty
Engine/Firemen’s Museum and the Cemetery Foundation.

Should an organized archeological exploration occur, Storey County will process discovered artifacts in the same
manner outlined above.

These terms may change subject to the decision of the Board of Commissioners.

I have attached a copy of Mr. Bullis’ letter as well as a final breakdown per unit and Ann’s appraisal. Please let me know

if 1 have

omitted any terms we discussed and how it goes when you’ve talked to Bill. As | mentioned, | am happy to sit

with both of you if preferred. Once I know we are good to proceed, | will have the matter placed on the January 21%
Commission meeting agenda for approval and order preliminary title reports.
Many thanks...

Pat

Pat Whitten
County Manager
Storey County

(775) 847-0968 (Office)
(775) 721-7001 (Cell)

PWhitten@StoreyCounty.org




Mov.5, 2013

.Rcmatdw f;-'-al agah;—:r :
o 5Bo0 Blue Hifls Drive =
EnS ﬂenﬁ, éW 395%?33*%30

| LE&E Pﬂﬁﬁlﬁlﬁ ‘%ﬂl@ l:?:tE %ma ‘zf rgima ﬁﬂi}‘ reai P«state ke

it 7 Zﬁhn aw %5 csawr&g'

A




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 21, 2014 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action on whether to extend the Storey County Infrastructure Tax
and approval of the plan of projects to be funded by the tax.

2. Recommended motion: (2 motions) I move to extend the Storey County Infrastructure Tax. I
move to approve the plan of projects.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary:

This matter was heard by the Board at a public hearing on December 3, 2013 and was continued
to January 7, 2014 to give the Board the opportunity to participate in a workshop on whether the tax
should be continued for a purpose set out in NRS 377B.160 and if so, what to include in a new plan
for the expenditure of the proceeds of the tax for that purpose. In the year 2000, Storey County
adopted Ordinance No. 169 imposing a sales tax for infrastructure pursuant to NRS 377B.100. The
projects listed in the original ordinance, including school roof repair and water line replacement,
have been completed. The state statutes require that the approval of the plan to be made by the Board
at a noticed public hearing and that the approved plan must be included in the ordinance that must be
approved by two-thirds majority of the Board. If a plan is approved at this meeting it will be put in
Ordinance 13-251 Amending the infrastructure tax, which will be heard on February 4, 2014.

5. Supporting materials: Copy of the plan of projects. Copy of NRS 377B.160(3)

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government if the tax is continued. Lost tax revenue if it is not
continued.

7. Legal review required: Yes MStﬁd Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller
34 ~County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[ Approved Approved with Modifications

/e
[ ) ]

[] Denied Continued

Agenda Item No. \L\




NRS 377B.160 Infrastructure fund: Expenditure of principal, interest and income.
The money in the infrastructure fund, including interest and any other income from
the fund:

3. In a county whose population is less than 100,000, must only be expended by the
board of county commissioners in the manner set forth in the plan adopted pursuant to
subsection 7 of NRS 377B.100 for:
(a) The acquisition, establishment, construction, improvement or equipping of:
(1) Water facilities; or
(2) Wastewater facilities;
(b) The acquisition, establishment, construction, operation, maintenance or expansion
of:

(1) Projects for the management of floodplains or the prevention of floods; or
(2) Facilities for the disposal of solid waste;

(¢) The construction or renovation of facilities for schools;

(d) The construction or renovation of facilities having cultural or historical value;

(e) Projects described in subsection 2 of NRS 373.028;

(f) The acquisition, establishment, construction, expansion, improvement or equipping
of facilities relating to public safety or to cultural and recreational or judicial functions;

(g) The payment of principal and interest on notes, bonds or other securities issued to
provide money for the cost of projects, facilities and activities described in paragraphs (a)
to (), inclusive; or

(h) Any combination of those purposes.




DEPARTMENT DESCRIPTION

CURRENT INFRASTRUCTURE BALANCE

PUBLIC WORKS
WATER Replacement Lakeview Water Line
Five Mile Reservior Restoration
Divide Reservior Restoration

BUILDINGS AND
GROUNDS V&T Depot Purchase

V&T Restoration

Gold Hill Restoration

Court House Remodel

Fire Station #72

DA/Sheriff Building Purchase

lustice Court Building Purchase

LAND PURCHASE Gallagher/Clark Lot
Gallagher/Clark Renovation
Eaton's Lot
Eaton's Lot Renoviation
Curtis Lot
Connell Lot Purchase

COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT Mark Twain
Flood Caontrol

Community Center

Lockwood
Flood Control
Community Center
Community Garden

TRI County Road Repair
County Drainage and Erosion

COMMUNICATION: Cassidian Partriot Vesta
PAINTED ROCK Bridge Repair

Grand Total

ESTIMATED
COsT

3,000,000.00

300,000.00
80,000.00

W | W A

3,380,000.00

600,000.00
300,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
250,000.00
300,000.00
450,000.00

N A A Wy A

2,400,000.00

275,000.00
300,000.00
100,000.00
100,000.00
100,000.00

50,000.00

WU A A i

925,000.00

W 4

50,000.00
25,000.00

i

75,000.00

30,000.00
30,000.00
10,000.00

Y|4 W

70,000.00

wr

500,000.00
100,000.00

U |

600,000.00

180,000

25,000.00

7,655,000.00

$2,000,000




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 21, 2014 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required []

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve the first reading of an Ordinance 13-254 adding
section 16.24.068 Lot consolidation to the Storey County Code to create a lot consolidation process,
amending section 16.24.070 Reversion to acreage, and providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: [ move to approve the first reading of Ordinance 13-254.
3. Prepared by: Dessie Redmond, planner. Robert Morris, outside counsel.

Department: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: Storey County has been using a lot consolidation procedure to allow the owner
of contiguous lots to merge them into a single parcel. Staff has reviewed the process and is
recommending that the Board approve this ordinance that puts the lot consolidation procedure into
the code. There will be two ways to consolidate lots; the first process is similar to a boundary line
adjustment and creates a new legal parcel with the recording of a record of survey. The second
process has the Board designate the planning director to act for the county by signing agreements
with applicants that will be recorded to create an equitable servitude on the property. This
administrative process does not create a new legal parcel but both the owner and the county are
bound by the agreement to treat the parcel as though it is consolidated. Storey County will be able to
legally enforce this agreement. (Continued on next page.)

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 13-254, lot consolidation agreement.
6. Fiscal impact: None on local government

7. Legal review required: Yes Jé&DTs'm'rAttomey

8. Reviewedby: '
epartment Head Department Name: Planning

@.ﬂ ~County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. IS

Staff summary (continued)




State law has been amended to allow the County to re-subdivide approved subdivisions
without reversion to acreage. This process has not been added to the code because it requires very
short timelines and doesn’t allow adequate planning review. The new ordinance also amends the
section on reversion to acreage to match state law.




Ordinance No. 13-254
Summary

This ordinance creates a lot consolidation process with a record of survey under NRS 278.5693
and an alternative administrative review process using an equitable servitude to combine
multiple lots into a single parcel. It also amends section 16.24.070 Reversion to acreage.

Title

An ordinance adding section 16.24.068 Lot consolidation to the Storey County Code to
create a lot consolidation process and amending section 16,.24.070 Reversion to acreage,
and providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTION I: Chapter 16.24, is amended as follows:

16.24.068 Lot consolidation.

The purpose of this section is to allow an owner of contiguous lots in the same zoning district
to consolidate the lots into a single parcel.

A. Applicability:

1. The lots involved must be within the same zoning district and the proposed lot
consolidation must meet all the requirements of the zone.

2. The lots involved must be existing platted lots.

3. The lots must be under unified ownership.

B. Application requiremenis:

1. An applicant must complete an application for a lot consolidation on a development
application form approved by the planning director and pay any requirved fee.

2. The applicant must include a record of survey by a professional land surveyor that
shows the consolidation of the lots into a single parcel and meets the requirements of a boundary
line adjustment under NRS 278.5693.

C. Administrative lot consolidation procedure.

1. The planning director (director) may determine that an administrative lot consolidation

procedure may be used instead of a record of survey if

a. The lots were created by a map before the county adopted a subdivision approval
process;

b. The consolidation of the lots will result in elimination of potential water well; or

c. The consolidation of the lots will reduce the density of the lots or bring the lots into
conformance with existing zoning,

2. The application for the administrative lot consolidation procedure must include:

a. A completed development application,




b. A completed lot consolidation agreement with Storey County to create an equitable
servitude.
c. An 8.5 by 117 plot plan drawn to show the lots with identifying legal description and
measurement of the property. The map must:
i. Include an arrow indicating north on the plot plan.
ii. Identify the lot, block, adjacent roadways, access roads, and easements.
ii. Show the two or more adjoining lots with middle lines designated for removal as a
dotited line.
3. The plot plan and the lot consolidation agreement must meet the general recording
requirements of NRS 247.110

C. Investigation:

Following the submission of a complete application for a lot consolidation or an
administrative lot consolidation procedure, the planning divector will investigate the application
to determine that the proposal meets the requirements of this code. After the director determines
the application meets the requirements of this code, the application must be sent to the recorder
Jor review to determine that the documents for recording are in an acceptable form. After the
application has been investigated by the director, defermined to be compleie and in acceptable
Jform, the application is ready for decision.

D. Decision:

The planning divector is the final decision maker on an application for lot consolidation. The
director must review the application within a period of 30 days after the determination of the
complete application and by written decision must approve or disapprove it. The director must
cite findings of fact in the decision.

E. Findings:

; The director’s decision must be based on findings that indicate that the proposed lot
consolidation:
1. Complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the county

master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopled.
| 2. Will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent properties, the
| character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public improvements, public sites, or
right-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, and general welfare.

The findings listed in this subsection are the minimum to be cited in an approval; the director
‘ may include additional findings in the decision.

F. Final approval and recording procedures.
1. When director approves a lot consolidation, either a record of survey or a lot
consolidation agreement and plot plan must be recorded in the office of the county recorder. If
| the recorder does not maintain a cumulative index for these lot consolidation documents, the
| recorder must make written notations of the fact on each sheet of the previously recorded maps
affected by the latest recording. If such an index is maintained, the recorder must make an
appropriate entry for the amendment,
2, The recorder must within 7 working days after he or she records the lot consolidation
| documents, provide to the county assessor at no charge:
| a. A duplicate copy of the map and any supporting documents, or
| b. Access to the digital map and any digital supporting documents.
| 3. A plot plan presented to the county recorder for the vecording must include a certificate
by the director on the plot plan stating that the director approved the map.
\
\




4. Lot consolations become effective upon the record of survey or the lot consolidation
agreement and plot plan being recorded by the county recorder. This lot consolidation process
will not affect any existing easement or dedication of record.

G. Any further subdivision of a consolidated lot using this section must be done by subdivision
map, parcel map, or division into large parcels and meet the requirements of Title 16, this code
and NRS 278.

16.24.070 Reversion to acreage.

The purpose of this section is to allow the reversion of any subdivision map, parcel map, map
of division into large parcels to acreage.

A. An owner or governing body desiring to revert any recorded subdivision map, parcel map,
map of division into large parcels, or any part of such a map, or more than one map if the
parcels are contiguous, must submit a written application accompanied by a map of the
proposed reversion. The application must describe the requested changes and the map must
contain the same survey dimensions as the recorded map and be in a form acceptable to the
county recovder and assessor.

B. The governing body must review the map within 30 days of the filing of the completed
application and map or at its next meeting, whichever occurs later, and approve, conditionally
approve, or disapprove it.

C. No other provision of NRS 278.010 to 278.630 apply 1o a map of reversion, except for the
provisions of NRS on resubdivision and reversion and the provisions of this chapter and
including the payment of fees in confunction with filing, recording or checking of the map,

D. On approval of the map of reversion, it must be recorded. The county recorder must also
make a wrilten notation of the fact on each sheet of the previously recorded map if the recorder
does not maintain a cumulative index for these maps. If an index is maintained the vecorder must
make an entry for the amendment,

E. The county recorder, within 7 working days of recording a map of reversion, must provide
the assessor at no charge:

1. A duplicate copy of the map and supporting documents; or
2. Access to a digital map and supporting digital supporting documents.

Proposed on , 2014,

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2014,

Vote: Ayes: Commissioners




Nays:

Absent

Attest:

Commissioners

Commissioners

Vanessa Stephens

Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on

Bill Sjovangen, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

. 2014,




Existing Assessor Parcel Number(s):

Please review this document with your attorney or a
knowledgeable land agent before submitting it to
the Storey County Planning Department. When the
application is approved the applicant is responsible
for the recording of the documents at the Storey
County Recorder’s Office.

Applicant Signature

Recorded at the request of and return to: Mail Tax Statements to:

Please complete Affirmation Statement below:

I the undersigned hereby affirm that this document submitted for recording does not contain the
social security number of any person or persons (Per NRS 239B.030).
OR
___ 1the undersigned hereby affirm that this document submitted for recording contains the social
security number of a person or person as required by law:

State specific law

Storey County Lot Consolidation Agreement Form

This agreement is made this day of 20 , by Storey
County and by the owner(s)
of the properties to be consolidated.

1. The owner requests the consolidation of and Storey County agrees to the consolidation
of the parcels referenced below to eliminate interior lot line(s). The parties agree that this
agreement will be an equitable servitude that runs with the affected land, that it will be binding
on the owner and the owner’s assigns and all persons acquiring or owning any interest in the
described parcels, that it will be recorded, and will be enforceable by Storey County. This

agreement may be entered into to accommodate either new or existing improvements, which may
i




encroach on the common interior lot line of the parcels, to reduce density from the parcels or to
bring the parcels into compliance with existing zoning.

2. The real properties to be consolidated are located in Storey County, State of Nevada,
and are described as follows:

Lot(s) of Block(s) of the
subdivision, as recorded in book on page , as document
number(s) , date(s)

Assessor’s Parcel Number(s):

3. Attach a completed development agreement form.
4, Attach a vicinity map drawn to show the lots with the surrounding vicinity area.

5. Attach a plot plan drawn to show the lots with identifying legal description and
measurements of property. The plot plan must show the two or more adjoining lots with the
boundary line(s) designated for removal as a dotted line, identify the lots, blocks and any roads,
easements, access ways, and above or below ground easements. The plot plan must be signed by
the planning director.

6. The number of the parcel where the majority of the primary structure or primary use
will be placed will become the lot number used to identify the consolidated lots.
The consolidated parcel will be known as Lot -

7. Attach proof showing unified ownership of proposed lots to consolidate.

8. Proof is provided by the certification from the Storey County Clerk’s office that the
current fiscal property taxes are paid for the entire fiscal year on the property to be consolidated:

(0 By Date

Storey County Clerk or Deputy Clerk
[1 Or, attach original proof-of-payment from the Storey County Clerk

9. The application for any development permit for the physical improvements on the
property to be consolidated may not be approved until the parcels are legally consolidated.




10. This agreement may not be revoked or modified without the express written and
recorded consent of Storey County. The equitable servitude created by this agreement may be
removed by filing a record of survey, approved by Storey County, meeting the requirements of
Storey County Code chapter 16.24 for lot consolidation.

11. The owner agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County, to the extent provided
by law, including but not limited to, NRS chapter 41, from and against any liability arising out of
the performance of this agreement proximately caused by an act or omission of the County’s
officers, agents and employees. The County does not waive and intends to assert available NRS
chapter 41 liability limitations in all cases. Contract liability of the County does not include
punitive damages. -

Storey County:

Planning Director Signature

In witness whereof, the parties have executed this agreement on the day and year written

above.

Owner(s):

Signature: Signature:
Print Name: Print Name:
Date: Date:

State of Nevada,
Storey County

This instrument was acknowledged before me on by

Notary’s Signature

My Commission Expires

Wy




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/21/14 Estimate of time required: 0- 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -~ Approval

2. Recommended motion; Approval

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Bepartment: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: Scc attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiseal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
x__ Department Hg Department Name; Community Development
@!Aﬂt}[ Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

d L

Agenda Item No. | {p




Storey County Community Bevelopment
Buginess |

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775} 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office January 13,2014
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the Janunary 21, 2014, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

AUSENCO PSIL, LLC - Contractor / 1320 Willow Pass Road ~ Concord, CA (Engineer)
PROTECH COATINGS -- Contractor / 9911 South 500 West ~ Sandy, UT (Contractor)
NEVADA TRAVEL CONNECTHON — Home Business / 399 Wild Horse Canyon ~ Sparks (Travel Agent)
FRONTIER CRANE -- Contractor / 3445 Golden Valley ~ Reno {Crane Rental Service)
DESERT AIR, LLC — Contractor / 1995 Boise Drive ~ Sparks (HVAC Contractor)
R.F. MACDONALD CO - Contractor / 8565 White Fir St ~ Reno (Boiler Sales & Service)
CROWN BEVERAGES, INC. — General / 600 Spice Island Dr ~ Sparks (Beverage Distributor)
TAHOE RENQO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, LLC - Developer / 420 USA Pkwy TRI
SOUDRONIC, LIMITED - Contractor / 465 North State Rd ~ Manor, NY (Can Manufacturer Machinery)
ARROW CONSTRUCTION — Contractor / 100 Ave of the Couleurs RB
PORT OF SUBS (WALMART) — General / 2155 USA Parkway TRI
MUSTANG RANCH EMPORIUM, LLC — General / 5 N C Street (Restaurant & Retail) vC
. MUSTANG RANCH MERCANTILE - General / 62 N C Street (Retail) vC
EUCLID CHEMICAL COMPANY - Contractor / 3735 Green Rd ~ Beachwood, OH (Concrete Supplier)
COMSTOCK VISIONS, INC. — Nenprofit / 150 North Summit (Event Promotion) vC
HEATTEK, INC. — Contractor / PO Box 347 ~ Ixonia, W[ (Can Equipment Installation}
. TRINITY ALARMS, INC. - Contractor / 660 Buckskin Drive ~ Fernley (Alarm Installer)
MOUNTAIN FOAM & COATING - Contractor / 305 Highway 395 ~ Washoe Valley (Contractor)
MINDEN HEATING & AIR - Contractor / 2701 Gordon Avenue ~ Minden (HVAC Contractor)
STERLING PRODUCTS, INC. — Contractor / 1100 East Woodfield ~ Schaumburg, IL (equip instalf)
AEC, INC. - Contractor / 1100 East Woodfield ~ Schaumburg, IL (equipment instllation}
. RAPID CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 3072 Research Way ~ Carson City (Contractor)

W AFFORDABLE FILTRATION - Contractor / 999 Ridgeview Drive ~ Reno (water filtration)
Inspection Required

fXC VRO QOAZCRSIINABRTARE

ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept, Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.
Dean Haymore, Economic Deyv. Assessor’s Office




